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Mr. David Irving
81 Duke Street
London W. 1

Dear Mr. Irving:

After the end of the war in Europe, I was appointed Chief
Prosecutor of the War Crimes Branch at Dachau, Germany.
I found that among the prisoners were five of Hitler's
six personal secretaries - Reynitz, Thoet, Krieger,
Buchholz and Jonuschat. The sixth, Erich Kempka, was
. a "automatic arrestee" as a member of the SS, and was
et .¢ held at another place.

I moved the five secretaries from a prisoner to a witness
status so that they could enjoy better living conditions
and would help me in preparation for the trials of war
criminals charged with atrocities toward civilians under
the Geneva Treaties.

The five were most cooperative, gave me great insights
into the chain of command operating the concentration
camps throughout Europe and Hitler's philosophy that
brought them into being. They helped me and the staff
in preparation of the cases, including leads to impor-
tant evidence against some of the principals, including
the apprehension of some of them.

I took a good many notes at the time, and have some of
them among my papers, including statements from each of
them as to some of their general impressions about
Hitler himself.

I am enclosing copies of the first sheets of these state-
ments to give you an idea of their content. These were
prepared with the idea that I would show them to a
publisher so that these men could collaborate in writing
an intimate war-time biography of Hitler. I did make
contact with one publisher, but found by correspondence
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with these men that they had lost interest in the project.
One of them wrote me that all of them were fearful of
reprisals. Some were warned by loyal Nazis, still loose
among the civilian population, not to speak with anyone
about Hitler's personal or official life. Thus, the
project died.

Krieger, to whom I wrote the letter you sent dated March
25, 1947, at that time was the only one still at Dachau,
as I recall. I had kept in touch with them for a time
hoping they would change their minds, to no avail.

I am enclosing also first page of copy from statement of
Erich Kempka on Hitler's last days in the bunker at Berlin.
He was the one who procured the gasoline for destroying

the bodies of Hitler and Eva Braun, at Hitler's request,

so that their bodies would not be displayed at some
"Russian side show". Perhaps the addresses of the
secretaries shown on the enclosed might help you to lo-
cate those who are still alive.

Very truly yours,

Horace R. Hansen

HRH/kb
Enclosures



81 DUKE STREET
LONDON W.1

[
TELEPHONE OI=490 D409

22 June 1974
Dear Mr Hansen:

Thank you very much indeed for your courteous reply to
my letter; I received both copies, the first in New York
and then the second here in London yesterday. Ihada

very pleasant stay in the States, and my wife found it very
enjoyable — it was her first visit,

The attachments appear to be of very considerable historic
interest. It is a tragedy that these men never got further
towards completing a written study of Hitler. I have been
working on the project myself these last nine years, and
the result is to be published by Viking Press next spring.
[ would very much like to read the rest of the reports in
your possession — I would of course give you full credit
as their originator —and wonder if you could prepare Xerox
copies of the complete file, whether you feel it would be of
interest or not, and mail it to me as rapidly as possible,
.1 will pay for the copying and mailing cost (I will ask my
New York agent to send you a cheque, as the easiest way).
Subsequently the reports will be deposited with the rest
of my document collection in the esteemed Institute of
Contemporary History at Munich, Germany, so your work
would after all serve a historical purpose not only for my
own researches.

You may have learned that Dr Ludwig Krieger died about

a month ago —a charming man whom [ interviewed on several
occasions, and who could clearly have revealed a lot more

to people interested in other periods. Karl Thot kept a diary
from 1942 to 1945 which he has just transcribed from the
shorthand for me, also.

With the very best regards, and thanks again for having
assisted me with such a prompt reply, I remain

Yours sincerely,

(David Irving)

Mr Horace R.Hansen,
Attorney at Law,

600 Degree of Honour Building,
Fourth & Cedar Streets,

Saint Paul,

Minnesota 55101,
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I apologize for the delay in sending the enclosed materials
to you. It took some time to get clearance from Viking Press,
then I became extremely busy and put these materials aside.

I had intended to write a memorandum on the background of
Hitler's secretaries, how they became appointed, and how and
why they wrote these memoranda for me. If you wish, I can send
you such a memorandum in a couple of weeks. Let me know if you

want it.

There were six male secretaries. The five taken to Dachau,
where I was chief prosecutor, were first prisoners then moved
to the status of witnesses, then, at my request, made employees

in my translation section.

They were of great help to me in gathering evidence and giving
me leads in the preparation of the concentration camp cases. In
return, they were friendly and wanted to do what they could to
make the record straight on the conduct of Hitler during the war

years.

They were appalled at what happened in the concentration camps

and felt they could lend something to history.

The memoranda

were a beginning in this direction, the plan being that I would
help them contact a publisher here and they would mail me more
extensive memoranda. This did not work out for reasons I can

explain to you later.

Of the six secretaries, all were at Dachau except Erich Kempka.
They were in the Wehrmacht and were handled differently from
Kempka who was a member of the SS and retained at a different
camp. The translation from Kempka enclosed was not taken by
me but came into my possession during the preparation for the
Dachau trial. There has been some exerpts of Kempka's state-

ments published in magazines here.
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I am keeping the originals here. You mentioned that the
documents you uncovered would be kept in some museum. Per-
haps later you can advise me about this and I will consider
turning the originals over to the museum.

Best wishes, and I hope your book is a great success.

Sincerely,

AU e B el

Horace R. Hansen e

HRH/k

P.S. A little explanation is contained in part of a letter
I wrote home in December, 1945. H.R.H.
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3 ponfusion, while in the adjoining Russian zone raunnstruutinn prng;;éée&-;énnéhly.
™ Such examples could be listed endlessly, and it all adds up to the oonclusion That
we are probably the world!s weorst ocouplers. .

After watehing the ocoupation from one end of the country to the pther for over a
year, I have a few other conclusions. Germeny is destroyed to the point of pros-
tration. The people are docile, obedient, bewildered, They fear doing anything,
even necessary things, until specifically ordered by the proper suthority. They
lack the temperement for demooracy, are politioally irresponsible, and if given full
opportunity, would probably boteh the attempt by profusing dozens of political
parties, worse then in France and Italy. The Church camnot do the job of rehabillt=-
ation as some insist, in faot, even mow it is not teaching the simple, obvicus
lessons, Economioally and morally, Germany neeads complete re-education and con-
stant guidance, perhaps for a generation. The four-zone plan of occupation, each
zone administered differontly, is already a bad begiming.

The endless disoussion of "good and bad Gormans" is purely escademios As individuals
there are countless good Germans, but as a nationalistic mass they ero arrogent and
‘\{, treacherous, They like good order, which, in their experience means a society where
~ each has his supsrior, In their ocontinuing misery they will aegain hope for enother
e Bismarck, Kaiser or Hitler to bring order out of confusion and to avenge their
\:t miserye If that means war again, the most exemplery "good Gorman', like Pastor
Niemosller, will not agk if the war is just, but will volunteer instinetively.
Wiemoeller, the great Church man end world-famous Anti-Nazi, voluntoered for the
U-boat service in 1939, -

\» .
p The long, tough ocoupation job should be turned over to interested oareer people as
. soon s possible. The troops here now have no stomach for the job, ere sick and
tired of Europe and want to go homa.
s :
"y Fortunately, I was spared occupation duty, In Septembar I was ordered into prosecu=-
3 tion of war crimes, went to lMunich then 4o Dacheu. A Colonel was going home on
o points so I landed in the plush seat as chief proseoutor for the Eastern Distriot,
4‘ x The Dachau concentration ocamp is now the central cage for the Eastern District and
Y over 30,000 war oriminals and SS troops ere here now. In made-over factory buildings
% we have three court rooms, administrative offices and a 400 bed "hotel" to acoomo-
. date witnesses, I have a staff of officer-lawyers and researchers and soms forty
'ﬂi translators and typists investigeting and preparing casea for trial,
n.'f-\ . .
~ A1l of us pitched in to prepare the Dachau oase now being tried by & team from
K, gentral headquarters that hes worked on it since last May. MNeantime my section has
E“- been working on other concentration camp cases == Buchemwald, Mauthausen, Flossen=
ﬁxu berg -- and other atrocity cases which occurred in this District., Ve hope that when
B these are tried and recorded the "doubters" back home will believe and remember.

Yhile this big job has been going on I have tried several cases involving atroolties
against Americens, which we are anxious %o clean up first. Most of these were agains
membars of the Nazi Party, Gestapo and Kripo for murder of surrendered fliers, and
rosulted in death sentences. After investigetion and preparation work months ago,

it is a personal satisfaction to me now to be in on the payoff.

Qur trials are models of fairness and give the defendant avery'cppurﬁunity for de~

A
9
W
//CT-___' W\ fense, The court is a military commission of high-ranking responsible officers.

The defendant is represented by a civilian lawyer if he chooses, and in any event
by American officer-lawyers who are bound to produce all witnesses and evidence he.
reguests. The ocourt interpreter.assures that every word is translated into German
for the benefit of the defendant. The trials are well-attended by German civilians,
mostly from Munich, who also hear full reports on the radio, There is no question
that Germans are impressed with the fairness of these trials, & result whioh we are

anxious to obtain for its historical value.

e ' .
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Like most units here, ours is short on personnsl because of redeployment, Ve have
had to hire a good number of civilians, mostly DPs, to fill in. The best of the

lot are five Germans with an interesting baokground. They were secretaries to Hitler
who were taken at Borohtesgaden and held here as material witnesses. ¥hen the work
got too heayy to handle, I put them to %ork ag translators and typists, Thep are

all viell-edncated and ure loyal, hard workers. Since I have gotton to know them
better, I use two of thom for my dictation.

They have each written longthy and detailed statements for our files on the entire
time they acted as secretaries, and on my suggestion are going to ocollaborate in
writing a book on Hitler's official life. We believe their accounts to be trust-
worthy because a olose check on thair persomal history shows that thoy wero chosen.
only for intolligence and their ability as linguists and negorders, Seorocy was
assured by kooping %them undor guard.

Some highlights of their statements: They worked in shifts and followed Hitler
like a shadow. He wanted every word he uttered recorded for posterity, believing
implicitly that he was a manm of world destiny. He nover ohewed a rug, znd went into
a rage only to impress his listeners, usually in a oritical situation, ‘Only twice
in staff neetings did anyone speak up against his orders. Both times it was Jodl end
he was promptly squelohed by & good raging ¢aoh time. In the bomb attemph on his
life on 20 July 1944, Hitler's pants' leg was burned off, arm bruised when the
tabla flew upward and his hearing so affected that he had extrems: difficulty using
the telephone ever afterward. (The secretary present in the room at the time is
still half deaf)., Hitler was not a homosexuasl, showed normal affection toward
Eva Braun. He did not consult astrologists. Since the invasion, the olosest Hitler
"ma to the front was Hamburg, when the fighting was still in France. Most of the
-+ he wag in Berlin or Berchtesgaden. In early April, 1945, he ordsred all "Aus=
-aaders" (concentration camp inmates) to be liquidated, bo keap them from falling
into our hands. He functioned normally until Hismler doubls-orossed him, on the
occasion when he ordered 80,000 S5 troops from the West to the Redoubt and Himmler
sont only one-third that number, Fram that day he refused to talk with Himmler,
he lmew his power hed slipped, and from then on started %o £0 to pieccss Ho bocame
bent~over, his face was always red and his hands shook constantly, He took many
pills and received regular injections of drugs. Dre Roynitz last took Hitlert's
dictation in Berlin on 22 April 1945 and says he was all but a dead man then., All
five seorotaries beolieve without doubt that Hitler is dead, basing their assumption
on the story told by the gixth Eauretary;“'Thsy lmow him well, and knowing.him
especially as being anything but clever, feel instinetivoly that he would not be
chosen for a ruse artist in any plot. Furthermoro, it was his normal shift.

Of all the bizarre things that have happened to me over here, having Hitler's
secrotaries take my dictation conoeming prosecution of Nazis tops them all, Thers's
one more goofy touch to this. Prince Leopcld of Prussia, nephew of the Kaiser
Wilhelm, was a political prisoner in Dachau and is here as a witness in the trigl.

I hed dimer with hinm one night and told him about the five secretaries. He wms
highly excited and wented to see them so the next day I had them all together in my
office. He questioned them carefully as to who and on what evidence he was ocondemnsd
Yo Dachau, He got some leads which he is going %o follow up when he returns to
Austria. So I help German royalty avenge itself +oo.

If I weren't so busy, life in Dachay would be quite pleasant, I live in the former
SS Kommandani's mansion, have a maid (altfrau) and chauffeur. Ve have a nice
—o%.icerts club, a wonderful mess and a lot of entertairment available in lunich ten
miles aways The Alps are only a short way soyth but so far I haye been able to
maka anly one visit to Berchtesgaden and one %o Garmisch., The snow is staying on
the growad now and it's almost as cold as it would be in Minnesota,

MERRY CHRISTMAS AND HAPPY NEW YEAR - H.R.H.

=
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My name is Hans JUNUSCHAT, born in 1901 in Konigsberg i.Pr.
(East Prgussia). My home address is: Berlin-Lankwitz, Hirzbacher
Weg No. 10. I visited elementary and higher schools in Berlin '
until graduation (Abituriuwm) in 1920 and entered the stenographic
service of the German Heichstag in Qotober 1920. Along with this
occupation I was studying national economics at the university of
Berlin and concluded these studies with getting the diploma of a
Dr. rerum politicarum in 1926. I became & civilian service official
as Reichstagsstenograph in 1928 and remained in this position also
after 1933 without being compelled to Jjoin the national socialist
party. I never sought admission to this party on my own initiative,
because I am no raVUlutiuna;y qharacte: and I opposed certain
methods which, however, ah?inuély belong to the "dynamics" or
"autonomy" of a revolution. Before 1933, too, I was never a member -
of & political party.

During the war I served as a private from August 1941 to
September 1942, finally with the deputy headquarters of an army
corps in Berlin, whence I was transferred to the Fihrer's head- |
quarters in September 1942, in order to work there as a conference |
stenographer. I did this work as a civilian service employee ani
was discharged from the armyg. |

I scarcely can contribute reports of importance aboutithe
events that happened when I was on duty there. The great events
and incidents are known and reported by others. What I should ba
able to say would be no more than personal impressions which are
not valid in general and may be false.. Therefore I should like —
to confine myself to a few items. : :

Hitler was a man'of'vast knowledge in matters of technical
construction of tanks etoc. and could not aasily be decedved in
this respe¥t. But aiso in other mattara(he & was endowed with
the power of a sharp disorimination. He oould %}va discourses
which were unasaailabla in theirs logios, if you once accept«the

k&m&m&a{m" R



.Sugpositions from which he started. But these Suppositons may
not always have ba&n'cdrractf He thought, in the end of 1942
and in 1943 that Russia was_nearty standing vefore a collapse,
and he indulged in calculations of the Russian strength based on
foreign press news favoring his opinion. One should think that
he was blinded concerning the realities of power in Germany and
in foreign countries, partﬁcularly with his enemies. He would
overlook or treat in an off-handish way such things as Were not
conform with his deductions which were for the most part diotated
by cettain purposes. Notwithstanding he was convinced that he
alwéys saw things right and thdt his resolutions were based upon
realities. :

Therefore it is no wonder that he was sSometimes spoken of as
& demoniac nature. It is a sentence from antiquity: Quem Deus
vult perdere prius dementat. God first blinds hiwm or makes
demented him whom he will destroy (without, of course, extinguish-
-ing his own responsibility). That seems to be true with Hitler,
especially in his last months. Perhaps he did not know what he
'@id , may be he was darkened by-his desperation so that he did
no longer take any care for the lot of others.

Bug it is known that along with the ﬁzﬁgg%'efforis of his
gax regime for the reconstruction and the overcoming of an economic
and social orisis oblously existing in Germany, he even in former
years &e cared too little for many a thing now pblicly denounced.
I mean the fragile moral base of his theories. But it must not
be forgotten that in thisg respect thers is no great differsnce
between revolutions altogether, as may be seen from history, i.e.
from the Russian and from the great French revolution of 1789,
the protopype for =Xt the priciples of all modern revolutions.

The latter ended with the elevation of one man whose will was
, Stronger than that of Others, and in a similar way things came to
pass in Russia and in Germany. Incidents like those during the
French, Russian and Hitler's revolutions might justify some doubts,

S



if such priciples as Kants categoric imperative can be maintained
by man as an indfpendent being, only relying on his own ming.

But you do not want to listen to philosophical comtemplations,
you wish to know something about Hitler. The first time I saw him
from eya to eye was in 1930 or 193l. He had to give witness to
the garpnsas of the SA on a trial, and I togeliher with another.
stenographer had to write down his speech. When the session was
finished he approached to us two stenographers, gave his hand to
each looking him full in the face. I do not know wshes whether
there was something demoniac in his eye, but I should not have
liked to work near hlm for fear to lose the power of my own wlll ,
and in the end to approve everything he would do only because it was
he who would do so without its being justified from moral point of
view. But may be he only intended or was accustomed %o look in
such a way at strangers in order to change them into blind followers.
inen, after 1l years, I had to work in his presence, my former
impression had vanished and I did not suffer myself to be constrained
by his spell. It struck me, however, that he occasionally, when
talking to a pefson, sesmed—-to_look not into’ his interlocutor's
eyes but tﬁbﬁih his eyes at a point far behind.

To conclude, he may have been a demoniac, but no more than
Napoleon was who is told to have said in a speech to the Gouncil
of Ancients on 10 November 1759: "I have always'fallawed the god .of
war, and fortune and the god of war are with me." I cannot know
xz2 whether that was a figure of speech or whether he really thought
so, but the faot is that afterwards he was blinded and deceived
by fortune and his god and that he was ruined, with the only
difference from our times that to-day the consequences of such
politics are much worse than in former times, because with the’
increase of human knowledge (but not wisdom) means of destruction -
have increased, too. '

To persons near him Hikkiix Hitler showed the fxim most friendly
demeanor and cared much for there welfare. During the military
meetings of the day he hexahsd behaved in the most self-composed
manner; if ne was incited he did not utter it otherwise than by
words. - i . '

-3 .



I do not know if the opinion of a German about the guestion
of the Jews may be of interest. I give mine though - or because =-
it is probably that of an outsider. In this guestion the extrem
differences oppose eachother. The national sosialist teachings
maintain that the Jew is inferior because of his racisl constitu-
tion and can at all[EEIflggﬂﬁp;;ggjin a harmfulg or destructive
way so far as non-Jews are concerned. These teachings one-sidedly
emphasize certain features of the Jews which undoubtedly exist,
as every nation has its characteristic fxeatures and which in
Germany may have come forth more than in Anglo-Saxon countries,
wiExas whereas the comm@n nature of man is denied by those teach-
ings. Therefore they ara'iﬁaaﬁﬁiﬁing with the facts which show
that people of all shades of moral qualitied may be found among
Jews as well as non-Jews.

The liberal-indivihalistic doctrihe one-sidedly sees the common
nature of man and principally denies the differences existing
‘between e nations. Thus, it, too, is inconsisgent with the facts.
It says: German Jew equals German, American Jew equals American etc.
History, however, proves that during the long centuries of seperate
treatment of Jews as well as .in the past century under the ruls
of liberal principles since the emancipation of the Jews, these
have remalned recognizable as such, have not been assimilated by
other nations, as, Iror inatanca, & German or another European
usually is being assimilated by the American people after a few
generations and may only still be recognized by name and speech
if he has kept them yet. :

Thus the Jews have rewained a nation for themselves.. This
historical fact subsists even if it is not acknowledged by theory,
and it is supported by the tendency of Jewish leaders to breng their
people back to their promised country, which proves that the Jews .
themselves feel as a nation of their own. Therefore I have some
doubts if unconditional epalisation will do. Hear one Jewish
witness from the past. \hen the Jews in Spain were systematically
persecuted and driven away about the time of the discovery of
America, one of their Rabbis is said to have criticized the
Christians by the fnlléwing words: "We are both a blessed aml a
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cursed people. Now you Christians want to exterminate us but you
will not succedd, for we are blessed; some other time mm you will
make efforts to raise us, but that, too, will be unsuccessful, for
we are cursed."

If, even according ikm to the above guotation, certain
differences cannot be eliminated, men, however, are not justified
in looking down on the Jews like Pharisees and treating them as
inferiors or suppressing them. Perhaps people would do best if
they were to accept them like foreigners and guests who may occupy
honored positions and with whom fréendly re{ations may be enter-
tained. How this relationship could be formed may be shown by the
basis which is described by the lMosaic law itself: "If a stranger
sojourn with thee in your land, ye shall not vex him, but the
stranger ‘that dwelleth with you shall be unto you as one born
among you, and thou shalt love him as thyself; for ye were strangers
in the land of Egypt" (Lev. XIX, 33.34). To meet eachother with
& mind like that would perhaps serve 10 encourage mutual under -
standing. . S

Wherewith I oconclude, for I was to write/a note and not a book.
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lotes of my stenographic pareer and my impressions 1907 - 1945.

- Personal data:

My nams is Ludwig KRIEGER.

Permanent adress: Berlin-Steglitz, Schonhauser str. 17, I.
Last rank: Qberregierungsrat, director of the stenographers!
Office of the German Reichstag.

I was born at Drcsden (Saxony) on 16. February 1887. After
absolving the Secondary school' of "Mother Anna" at Dresden I sta-
died philosophy and psychdbgy atthe University of Leipzig from
1906 - 1908. After being called as stenographer to the Saxon
Diet and to other parlaments of German provinces in 1907 and as
stenographer %o the German Reichstag at Berlin in February 1908
I studied political sciences at the University of Berlin Trom
lgg? until 1912 beside performing my service at the Parlaments-

O CE .

From 1908 - 1914 I was a stenographer of the German Reichstag

. (during the %ime ol the Chancellors of the Reich VON BULOW and

BETHMANN-HOLLWEG). At that time I also wrote down speeches of
August BEBEL and the German euwperor WILHELM II.

From August 1914 - November 1918 I was stenographer of the
Chief of the S5taff of the Gerwan rield-Army in the "Great Head-
quarters of H.l. the Emperor” (with all Cheifs of Staff of Wokld
Viar I: VON MOLTEE, VON FALCKENHAYN, and HINDENBURG with LUDENDOREF)

From November 1918 until February 1919 I was stenographer at *
several discussions of the Zentralrat der Arbeiter- und Sordaten-
- rédte (Central meeting of the Laborers and Soldiers Counsils) and
of meetings of the Rat der Volksbeauftragten (Counsil of the

Peoples Coumissars) (EBERT, LANDSBERG, SCHEIDEMANI, EISKER).

In 1919 and 1920 I was stenographer of the {Deutsche Natio-
nalversammlung" (The German National-Assembly) at Weiwar and at
Berlin. -

From 1920 - 1940 I was & stenographsr of the German Reichs-
tag under all German governments from SCHEIDEMANN to HITLER.

At that time I also was stenographer of various meetings of |
the Reichs-cabinet-jinisters, alsc stenographer of the :eichswirt-
schaftsrat (German Parlament of Kconomy), and besides a stenogra-
pher of various political assemblies, for ‘instance of the party-
meetings of the Sociul-Democratic Party, of the German-ljational -
People's Party, and also of some meetings of the Communist rarty.

From 19l9 until about 1923 I also was a stenographer of the

i Investigation-Jomulitiees oi the German National Assembly and of the
| German Reichatag concerning the question of the war-guilt of
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World-ffar I, concerning the German submarine-war, and concerning
of the possibilities of peace duving the World-War I (suwong othsrs,
investigations against VO BETHMANN-HOLIWEG, HELFFERICH, VON PAPZN,
LUDERDOREF, VON HINDENBURG). . .

About 192y I was stenographer of the proceedings in the insult-
sult of ERZBEAGER against HELFFERICH at Berlin.

In 1921 I was stenographer of the Supreme Court of the Reich
at Lelpzig, in pwesence of representatives of the Allied Powers,
investigating the German war crimes and the violations of the laws
of nations.

In 1922Y{'wWas stenographer of the German State Court at
lLelpzig against the murderers of Walther RATHENAU.

In 1932 I was stenographer of several severely secret meetings
of the Chancellor of the Reich V0N PAPEK.

. In 1933 I was stenographer of the trial of the Supreme Court
of the Relchn at Leipzig and Beriin, concerning the Reichstag-Firs.

Since 1935 I was stenographer of vacious secret meetings pre-

sided by the then Prussian Ninister-=prssident and the later Reichs-
marschall GURING (in the Reichsluftfahrtministerium in Ber-

lin or at GORING's country-seat at Carinhall), for instance ths :
meeting with the Gauleiters and the 55 etc after the action against
the Jews in November 1938;—-also a stenographer of the meetings of
the Reich-Defense-Committee, of the Four-Yemrs-Plan etc, and also
stenographer of courses of reports lectured by HITLER and the
leading personalities of the Party and of the Reich, taking place .
for instance at the Ordensburgen (Crdec-training-castles) of Vogel-:
sang and Sonthofen.

In 1936 (7?) I was a stenographer of the non-public Trial
against The priest NIZMJLLER. '

Since 1938 I was stenographer of several mestings of Special
Senates ol the Supremwe Cowrt Martial of the Reich (concerning
Generl von FRITSCH and several high commanding officers of the
German Army and of the HNavy.

In 194l I was appointed to Director of the stenographers'
Office of The German Reichstag. . :

In 1942 I was delegated temporary to the Headquarters of the
Reichsmarschall GORING.

In August of 1942 I was charged (aa Chief of the stenographer's
Office) to nominate stenographers fPr the military situation meet-
ings at HITLER's Headquarters. :

In Pebruary 1945 I myself was.called as stenographer to
HITIER'S Headquarters 8nd Was on duty at the military situation-
s ....2_ . ’



meetings until the end of April 1945.

In the 33 years of my -stenographic career from 1907 to 1945
in peace- and war-time I was an eye- and ear-witness of 5o many
important historical events and writing down ths words Spoken by
politicians, generals, and men of sciencs at these occurrences,
that I may say I was always feeling the pulsation of the present
and of history. Having been summoned only last night to write
down a report of my impressions during my career, I must nearly
1imit myself to the above enumeration of the most important assemb-
lies and meetings which I was writing down by shorthand. I thsre-
by wish %o state that among the people the speeches of whom I
wrote down there were men and women of all parties being prominent
in my remembrance, and other ones the name of whom had a special
sound, but who, according to my personal subjective opinion, were
fess important than there reputation. Though I must fear to omit
soms important men during this rash writin: down my impressions
I may set off the foilowing personalities who caused a special
lmpmssion %o me: Professor WUNDT of the University at Leipzig,
the Professor of history LAKPRECHT, the Chancellors of the Reich
VON BULOW, BethMANN-HOLLWEG, and especially BRUNING, also the
lilnister RATHENAU, especially as a member of the socialisation-
committee in 1919/20, the social-demovrats August BEBEL and Pal
LUBE, the communist Mrs. Clara ZETKIN, then the former member of
the German pre-World-War-I-Reiéhstag FEHRENBACH, whom I especially
remehber on account of his speech in the so called Zabern-affairs vy
and later on with his appeal to ths world at the meeting of ths
German National Assembly on the 12th of lay mixBmx 1919 at the
large Hall of the University in Berlin, when the conditions of the
peace after the first World-War became public at first. I also
must name in this category the generals Ludendorff and VOX HINDEN+
BURG and also GORING and HITEER. Among the people who left & bad
impression I may only name ROHM, STREICHER, FRANK and LEY out of the
last years. ' »

I cannot deny that also the personal impression which HIT'EF
made to me and, as far as I know, to all xkz stenographers of his
meetings was that of an extraordinary man. To thoSe who worked
closely with him nearly every day he appearesd as & man of indefa-
tigable dilligence, scarcely granting any rest to himself by day
and by night, as a man of great knowledgs and eXperience, mos; 1y :
convincing by his oratory, on the other hand a man of great personal
modesty and of kindnhess towards his associates and coilaborators,
glso & man of e special understanding of the stenographers' work,
which in none of my former positions = and in the opinion of the
other stenographers, too - at any times was &s hard as in the meet-
ings of HITLER's Headquarters. ’

It may be mentioned that GORING, when presiding meetings him-
self, always made the ilupression of an overtopping leader of the
discussions and of surely finding his decisions, but that he sloped
beside HITLER in the meetings and that his remarks at such occasions
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sometimes appeared naive and even childish. I occa&sionally heard
that this was also the opinion of the other stenographers working
in meetings with HITLER and with GULING.

In the 2 years (1943 - 1945) of my being together with
HITLER nearly every day I found it strange that he had no congenial
persons with him, also no friends in the rea. sense, at best I may
name general DIETL & friend of him. His military advisers, to be
sure, were officers of great understanding and knowledge, but also
with perceptible differences in this relation among themselves.
But among his adjutants there were men as VON PUTTKAMEL, DARGES,
and PFEIFFEH, who could not be estimate. highly, neither according
to theirg characters not to their achievements. Only his adjutnt
colonel VON BELOW appeared as a thowpoughly decent man.

I wish to state that in the meetings with the Mihrer, written
down by shorthand by me, never those atrocities against Jews or
prisoners of concentration camps were mentioned, which [ myse.?f
and the other stenographers, and, surely, the most German people
only learned after the end of the war. It remains a problem first
unsolved whether HITLER himself issued -the orders of such cruel-
ties or authorized men as HIMMLER or BOKMANN to do so or whether
generally held orders were carried out by subordinate organs and
sadists in such a brutal and vile manner. Some disclosures of :
GORING, HIMIGLER, NIEMOLLER etc would be fit to justify this con-
clusion. But on the other hand it seems impossible that HitLER,
who always consulted with his advisers, did not know these impor-
tant affairs. After having read Eurt HEIDEN's "Der Wiihrer" in
inglish (presented to me by an American in the summer of 1945) I
learned the background of HITLER's life, and now I believe that
—on account of his origin he was & split character. Apparently he
came from the depth-and—he wished to coneceal it. 'Therefore he
"held connection and even truth to men who met with him and served
to him in earlier days, though he later on must have realised
that they were no decent characters. He surely was a strangs mix-!
ture of a brutal, most anar&etical but also a good man.

Altogether the ﬂlsc;nsures of HITIiER in the military situa-
tion meetings caused the impression that he believed the war
against Poland in August of 1939 inavoidable, to be true, on
account of the occurrences there und at that time, but thst he en-
deavoured and thought to be entitled, according to the agreements
existing by that time, to hope that the war &t xm=k least might
be localized. This intention, however, had been frustrated, on .
his opinion, by the guilt of the Italian king, as HITLER repeated-
ly founded in particulars during his meditations in the meetings.
He often regretted that the war because of this behaviour of the
Italian King had widened to the Western powers and later on to ths
Americans.

After being in war HITIER's total willing snd doing was direcs
ted only by the idea to win the war. All things hindering himself
and the Army on this way ought to be exterminated and eliminated
on his opinion. Therefore he demanded the strongest punishment

- -
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of all faults directing agsinst the state or fit to weaken the
warfare. He had & good understanding of the difficulties ard of

. the performances demanded of the simple soldier, but he practised
the sharpest critique and the strongest justice against officers
and especially higher commsnders who obviously did not obey to his
orders.

HITLER already in 1943 felt the failure of the German Air-
rorces and he gave special and exact orders to improve thiese
conditions. He often complained of the sabotage of various
nigher officers in the offices of replucement and armament,
egspeclally of the delay of the achievement and of ths employment
of the V 1 and the V 2 and of the production of the lie 262 and the
arado 234 and of the bigger submarines and of other weapons.

These weapons ought to be ready in big numbers already &t the end
. of 1943 and should be used in the moment of the landing of troops
in Prance. He also saw coming the desertion of Italy. After the
attempt of the 20th of July he saw the buckground and the connec-
Tion with & treason of sowe generals. It was a dramatical meeting,
in which only KEITEL and later on JODL were present in HITLER'S
"room (beside me and Dr. REYNITZ as, stenographers), when he at first
recognized the false operation of Field-Marshall VON KLUGE and his
delivering the best German troops to the enemy. -

It is iwpossible for me to desoribe the most interest meetings
with HITLER and his advisevs in the last two years in the short
time I have for the writing down of these notes. Without claiming
any completeness I especially remembsr the introducing of Golonel
PELTZ to his task of the intended air-raid-attacks against England |
-in summer 1943, the night-meeting on the day of the landing of
the Allied Forces at Sicilia, the meeting concerning the prepara-
tion of the liberation of the Duce, the military-situstion-meeting
in the presence of MUSSOLINI himself, the controverses with general
GUDERIAN and HIMMIER snd KREBS about the Russian attack either
directly to Berlin or at first to Pommerania in February 1945 etec.

HITLER often admonished his generals by the examples of
Frederic the Great, but also by the examples of CHURCHILL and the
late President ROOSEVELT and even of STALIN and TITO, as examples
of men who did their best for their ideas and for their countries.

Dachau, 13. December 1945

LUDVIG ERIEGER.
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Dr. Ewald REYNITZ home-address Berlin-Linkwitz, Kaiser-
Wilhelmstr. 7lc, married, two children.

Bgrn 1907 at Brunsvick, atterded elosenisry scrool, teachers
college %rum 1916 to 1922, was a teacner Tor one year and than as
an extraneous galned the leaving eertificate of a Realgyanzsium
entitling to study at an university. 2 terms at Technicul nighschool
Brunsvick, since 1924 studying Hational Econowics at Berlin University
promotion there to Dr. phil. in 1929. |, |

Baployed as verbatim reporter ( stenograpner ) with tine Brung— |
vieck and Thuringinan Diet and since 1926 wit. tie German HReichstag.
Drafted into the army in 1941, liarch, service in Berlin, since
sumner 1942 detsiled to Fieldmarshall MILCH's HQ in Berlin and on
16 Sept., 1942, to Hitlers Headquarters (FHQ), at that time in

Ukrainia, Russia. : .

A stenographers office hud been establisht there a snort tiue
before, at first with members of the Pattiy Chancellery in iunich who ,
however, proved a failure. The man in charge of that affair had taen
gsked for "old" party members in the Reichstags stenographers office.
There were none and consequently 3 "young" party wmembers with member—
ship since 193%3 and 1937 nad been called. When the work couléd not bve
efficiently done by them alone, even non party members were orderdd’
syself and two colle.gues who at that time were zalso in the aruy. -
One of them luter died after beeing severely injured Zm waen tue
attennt on Hitlers life wius ZEz made on 20 July 1944. is most of us
116 been drafted into the army st the age of about 40 years we ware
only corporils und sergeants und were conseGuently retrausierred into
civilian stutus as Reiclistags Stenogr.pners (Regier.ngsrat).

after belng sworn in by Hitler we had to siin g pledge to heeg
silent on everything we would neir and see, woulld not t.ke notes for
pexrsonil use or m.ke any copies of typewritten transcripts. The Torm
pre:red for signiture zumkm continuously referred to tue siznatory
98 "Parteigenosse" = Party member. Vuen I urew Boruanns attention
to ay being no I:rty member he simply waved away this znd nhad us sign.!
o attempt wis ever made to induce us into Joining the Party, strange |
to say regzarding the confidentiial work we were employed in.

Our duties were to take down in shorthand every word spoken
in the meetings of Hitlers ailitary staff, daily briefings of tae
@ilitiry situation (Lage). There were no dictations of Hitler to
the stenographers; for this purpose he had his speecial fein:le secret— |
‘ries in his bunker who wostly did not tuke suortinand but typea rizht
Iway.,

Iwo of us were on duty for one day around the clock, coveriug
Trom 2 to 6 hours off stenogramm. "We then had two days time for dictit-|
ing our shorthand to lucy typists. Cnly one original and two coples
were typed and no corrections were ever made by sayone. inoever winted:
to iive 2 look into these Tevords hai to get - tarough Borusnn -
ditlers personal peruission. As Hitler hiumself repa;ted%zﬂ xplained
o his generils, he winted tnese verb.tim reports nuf“aﬁéﬁffor Lis
owi protection against f:lse or incorrect reports iroam nis suborGiuc:tes
but mainly for history in order to fix respensibilities for everytiing .
done. or left undone in the war. Thous 1t may be said that the final
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burning of these documents - j;pproximitely 100.000 typewritten p:ges
2:d the origin il stenogramms - by a S5 officer in tne beginaing of 2z
fiay, 1945, at Berculesgaden, wus aguzinst Hitcler's outsoken intention
That he did not mind theif falling into enemies n.nds is clurxly to
be taken from the fact thit he as late as 2% April 1Y945,wihen Russian
ar.illery fire w:s mosi severely hitting the .Reichs Causncellery in
Berlin, expressively ordered the two last stenozruphers on duty on
those aays to go to Berchitesgaden so that the minutes of tnese duys
meetings might be saved for pm history.

18, however, zbout 1.000 typewritten piges could be rewritten
by our tri:nsferring from burnt fraguments of originil sl-nojraiums,
aven tais small percentage will give a ratusr close ildea of uow
ditier and his military staff acted in these meetings.

' When I entered upon my duties in the FHQ on 16 Sept. 1942 I wzs
still in the belief that Hiteler was merely a puppet in txne nunus of
his generals. This belief proved untrue from the very begiuning.

It w:s just the time when Chief of Generali Staff HALDER, old-style
generil staff school, w s replaced by tiue more Nazi-liike type front
general EEITELER% recommended by Himimler, and Grand Adwmirasl R.EDiER
w+s replaced by DENITZ.

Thehﬁ?ﬁf“étrlnlng Teature in tihese meetings was now hiteler
actually mastered all those arround him not by bullying but siuply
t:1lking, t21king #snd talking. There w.s never such z taing that might
be czlled discussion, only monologue after monologue up to zny lenznt
of time. So I scarcely ever watched mmm gnyone speaking up or taliing
back even if this mighi have been his intention when being suauoned
to the FHQ or coming there on nis own regquest. Taut there were st
Hitler's disposal other means of "convincing" goes wituout s.ying
2 d i1s proved best in the cuse of fieldmarshall RQuIZL, but it does
not zlltogether alter the fact as such. lleramznn GORING sowmetimes
would start contradicting, but his arguments were mostiy so poor tuzt
fitgler could simply wave ilhen awiy. (Tonis refers only to thae "Lage-
imeetings"., I cin tell notaing about tue very frequent perscvnal msetings

of iitler with GUring as well as Himmler and Eormann.ﬁ

b

JODL wus the only one who in fact spoke up. ifter tue Allied lund:
ing in Italy when ditler wanted 15 to 20 divisions asctivated out of
uusgolinis "true fiscists", JODL bluntly told him that to his inowledge
there were no fascists in It:ly, at lesst not in soutuern Itly.
de immediztely received his rebuff., Anotler time during tue finul
u2ys in the bunker in the Reicas Cinincellery in Berlin when the fiist
Twnours avoul Presiuent Roosevelis ilmminent death were lea.xing cut,
Jodl m:de a vigue rewirk about "historic personslities". ihetiher tlhis
wis meant to dout hitler being a uistoric person.lity or not, Hitler
took it as such, and this wis one of tiae rire wowents wuen I saw uiu
in enactual rage. But even this wis far away from carpet beating, :
fist clinging and stamping the floor or things like that. He alusys !
regzined nis self control very soon. ' . '

The attempt on Hitler's life on 20 July 1944 hus buen Gescribead
by one of my colle:gues who was present ind escuped safe and sound.
Wit struck me after the atteupt wus Hitler's outspoiken telief tihat
Frovidence ( die Vorsehung ) must Lzve soumethning in store for aim by
sparing just nis life when he was one meter away From the exgloﬁing' ;
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bomb waickh hid meant dedath and aost severe injuries for so uwuny of
nis staff. ile w:s ;l:d insteasd because tne explosion anu the shock
received hiad relieved him of the neurotiec trembling of his rigit hand.
.le toolr that as one inore good comen and felt hiumsell inspired to prep-
aring into the last detall tlie Ardeniues offensive (Batlle of the
bulge), calling JCOLL and BULLE into his bedroom, wihere ue wWus lying
siclk for a couple of days in August or September. This offensive was
ag fer as I 2s a militsry laymsn can judge from all I huve seen or
heard wis in plenning and scheaing entirely Hitler's work.

This man wis possessed by one siangle idea, of wist he called
thie" greatness of Germany", and believed himself chosen by providence
to perform another "Wunder" or miracle, leading Geruany to final
victory in a wer that actuslly had been lost several times, ifter
Ifresident Roosevelt's death he szid: Believe me or not, tuis is tue
turning point in the nistory of ihis war and it is cert.inly a good
omen %tn:t providence toox him away from tne eartih sefore me. iis
death msy have no. lummediate consequences but you will see tnem altex
3 or 4 months at the latest.- S5 e went on, calling Tor anolner
offensive out of the Harz mountains, though all his military advisers
were rather sceptic?l, an offensive with 10 divisions newly activated
and inexperienced in combat, fonsisting merely of teen-agers wio
never even got to thelr jump-off lines. This offensive was to stop
tiie Americsns, and even if they marched into Berlin, ne would not
mind, if only the Russians could be kept at the Oder-front where
their offensive was to be drenciied in blood anddwould suffer tueir

biggest defeat in NiSTOTY evevess! oy

hat fin:lly broke even this manisc funatic Aot ouly in spirit
but also in body must have been this:

1. lie knew very wellltiat he started his biggest lie in telling
tine world that ational Soclalism and Ger.any are one thing, It
actuilly was a moument of triumph wihen he finally succeeded, the world
swallowed this lie and conseguently sturted im retuliating by .
bombing overcrowdied cities and destxayinﬁ?ﬁﬁ tae heap of rubble tuey’
are now. This lie gnd its consequences, u Wever, did not botier nim,

2. e was never guite sure of his arsy 3nd fielduwzrshalls. There
W8 never E.Eéﬁﬂﬁgﬂ;?ed and envied at tue same time as Stalin by

O LU
Hitler who repeatedly coupleined that up to then he, Hitler, could
not afford a thourough purging of the army, by means of which
Stulin, ne said, hid relieved his army from any residuents of the
"damned intelligentsia". ——

3. He had lost his intimate HESS who "actuully mus+t huve gone
mad". lie hud lost confidence in GURING at a rotuer early time, ned
himgelf predicted the final failure of the Luftwaffe unless certain
measures were carried through. They were not,as ditler charged,
on account of "sabotage" in the air ministry and GORING's inefficeucy
in tackling this problem. The Luftwzffe could not attack Englund,

h.d been unable in preventing the invasion of France, let aline the
protection of the howme country. !

4. e finally lost confidence in his beloved SS. It is not
qglta clear whether this wus caused by false reports from tie SS
La3% a troop movement of 75.000 SS elite troops from the West front
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to Ausiria nad been carrlied out according to unitlers Orders, wilereus
the S8° commsnd had sent only 40- $045.CC00 and held baci tue rest
for unknown reigons. Fact is that Hitler duriang tie final days
refused mxEx to speak to Himmler even over the telephone, and waenever
YLGILEIN, liaison between ditler and .lmler, sugpested uimmlers
participation in the meatingquja tlatly denied. _
Wihitever details based upoii person:l experiences I have civen lhere
or mignl be able to give in a continuation of this rough report,I
shauld like to empissize: they are not intenied to build up a legend
but rainer to destroy one; Nimely: tiet s man wdo like Hapoleon
stirred up the world, inflicted so amuch hardship, torture and desth
upon Gewnany and the rest of EBurope, must have appexred a monster at
Tirst sight. I even doubt wheler lie personally knew all about the
concentration cemp atrocities to the last shocking detail. But I.am -
honestly convinced that he would have approved them following his
general philosophy that the end justifies the means. Things: like that
Were merely trifles to him, the great man who had to lay the Ffoundation
for centuries ahead regardless of cost of lives, be it those of uis
own people whom he pretended to love or his enewies whou he hated.
There were moments af actual rage when he was reported that this or
that town - like Heidelberg - had been surrendered before the last
snot had been fired, the last building destroyed into mere dust and
the last man died. is far as I can judge, this man was always right
in predicting what would follow if that and that happened: if the
Crimean peninsula is evacuated, that will mean the loss of Zoumania ,
Bulgaria and Hugary....... gnd so on up to the last conseguences.
But whenever such en event eventually took place e would act as if
nothing at 2ll had lhappened, as if the war just could be stirted
anew from tuat new basis. He liked nimself being considered a great
architect. Sowmetimes during the period I could closely watch him
the idea struck me that this"arcuitect" wus like an insane, carefully
a2nd painstakingly erecting one building after the otaner out of u box
of bricks,starfing afresh,unmoved by every collapse and never noticing
that he is building on allavial sand and74n inclined plane,inat is
to sa{: ureaming of a state of glory for all tiues to coue but
esteblished on bluff and lies, toriure and murder.
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* Larl WHOET Dachau, 13.12,1945

chetagastenograpn
legierungsrat)

NOTES ABQUT Y CAREXR AND Y LIPRESSIONS LURLILG WY ACLIVIUY

1IN0 ol PUEHHFR'S HEADJIANTEHS .

I, Karl THOLT, w8 born on 30 July 1906 in Saarbriicken (Territory
of the Saar). After having attended the Oberrealschule (grammar school)
at Saarbriicken I studied modern languages (Tnglish and ¥rench) at the

universities' of TilVingen (Wurtembexrg) and Lerlin.

) Already during my schooltime I had learned shorivnand and, éaasing
the final examination at the graumar achdol at Saarbricken in 1925, 1
had received several certificates concerning my special ability of
writing shorthand. While I was stvudying in Berlin I was, towards the
end of 19285, oalled to Darmstadt (Hesse) as & verﬁatim_repnrter of tae
Hegsian Diet and in the following time to the Diet of Baden in Karls-
rukhie and the Provincial Diet of Hesse-lassau in Wiesbaden, too. Iﬁ.lga?
I became & member of thé verbatim reporters’ affi@é”nf the German-
Reiohstug in Berlin. Only very few sessions of the heiahstﬁg taking
place after 1933 we were charged with the official reporis aboud sess-
‘ions of high governmental offices, of the Heichsgericht (Hignest Court
-..Of Justice) in Leipzig, and of law-suits the government was particular-
1y interesved in. '
after the war had hruken out I was drafted to the VWenrmacht ia

April 1940, to whica I belonged until my being detvached to the Flihrer's

& s RIS

headquarters in my capaoclity &s verbatim reporter of the German Keichs=-

W

teg together with some of my colleagues. That hﬁppened in Sept. 1942.
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In the PFliarer's hecsdquarters we had to take down in shorivhand the
daily meetings of the Fihrer and his general staff, the so-called
“Iage-Bespreahﬁngen“, in which only military problems were discussed.
Yhis military meeting took place two times a day, during the first time
of our Leing on duty there, @bout noon and about 1900 hours. lLatexr on,
since avout the end of 1944, the first meeting started in tne after-
nﬁan, end the second one in the night, very often not before midnight.
The meeting at noon resp,., afternoon usually ‘lasted for 2 Lo 3 nours,
whnereas the ﬂeéting in the evening resp. the night geﬁerally did not%
vake more than 1 to 2 hours. Now znd then discussions took place about
matters not dir;etly concerning the military situelilon, out mere tech-

nical guestions, especially concerning the manufacturing of new weapons,

Beside the Filarer himself the military meetings were generally
attended by fieldmarshal KEITTL, general JODL (who was the chief of
vhe general staff referring %o the westeuropean, Italian and Balkan
theatre, whereas general ZEITZLFR and later on gqner&l.GUDEBIAH were
only competent for the eastern theaire), fhe aﬁﬁmander—in—chief of the
Luftwaffe (in the beginning of the war general JESCHONIEK, afier ais
death general KORITN, until he became & vietim of the attempt on Hit-
ler's life on 20 July 1944, later on general KREIPE , and towards vhe
end of the war general KOLLER)', further on representatives of the navy,:
mostly vice admiral VOSS and rear admiral:-v. PUTTKAER, this one being I
et the same time one of the Fithrer's adjutanis. Bach of the afore naaed

personalities wus accompanied by 1 or several assistant officers. ilore-

over there were present the various adjutants of the Fihrer as repre-
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senting the Army, the Luftwaffe, the lavy, &aund the 55. From time to time
Heichsmarshal Hermann GOFRING &nd admiral of the fleet DOTWITZ attended

the meetings.

ALs far s we could state laiter,the Fihrer had ordered official
reports of the "Loge meetings" to be taken down in shorthand after thae
first defeats of the German Army in the Russian campaign. He wes of
opinion that some of his generals had failled inlaarrying out his orders
or even fesiati@g'them. Thus he wished to have his orders given in the

daily meetings fixed.

The contents of one of. the first meetings there which I aﬁtenﬁeﬂ
was the dismissal of general HALDER, up to that time chief of the gene-
ﬂai-éégﬁfi‘?amticipa%ur&~ef—%ﬂia~meeting were, beside the Fﬁhref, fiElﬁﬁx
marshal XEITEL, general HALDFR, my colleague Dr. REYNITZ, ond myself.
Nobody else was present. - It was & strange situation. The Fihrer went-
ed to get rid of HALDER, because HALDIVR was an old man, @Eivering tne
* daily report zbout the military situation in a somewhaty doctrinaire
menner whioh did not accord to the Fihrer's iemper. “his mee?ing, now-
ever, consisted only of & monologue of the Fﬁhrér, in which he declar-
ed that eseeerdisg in his opinion HALDER was in need £ of rest and &
younger men was to take his place. Sesides, he stated that in the
general staff he did not want to nave officers whose political inclin-
atioﬁ did not totally agree with the ideas of the NSDAP. General HALDER
did not muke any objeotions, and, as far as I recollect, fieldmarshal
KFIPFL, too, remained silent. At the end HITLER gave HALDER his thenks

for his military merits which he nevermind appreciated very much.
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The successor of HAILDY¥H was general ZTITZLFR who before had been
comnander-in-chief of the 3rd armored army in'Huasiﬁﬁun& laeter on on
specisl duty in irance. He was & man of about ﬁﬂ'yéars of uge, but of a
very youthful temper. It was striking in wiaich way ZFILZL'R's own ideas
were in_nnnfcnnityH%Efﬁhiﬁﬁse=a£ﬁiggh§phrer. He had also a special tulemn
concerning all problems of organization and uvereﬁmiﬁg difficulties in
metters of trensport and supply, so thet one could have the ilupression
bne Iihrer had now found the man eqiivalent to his proper ideas. In the
gourse of time, nowever, general ZTITZLER got wmore En@ more Zfamiliar
with the ideas af ﬁne general staff oontrary to his own original mean-
ing, and thus also divergences of opinion between him and the Fihrer
were no longer to be avoided. After the atvempt on HITLER's life on 20
July 1944 - on whioch occasion one of my colleagues by name of BIKGIR
lost his life -'general ZBIVZIER was replaced by general GUDTRIAN who .
up to that date had been the iuspector of the German armﬁred.trunps.
GUDFMRIALN remained chief of the general svaff until about Kebruary 1945,
when the kKihrer ordered him, on account of his having failed, too, to
rest for a while %0 ocure his heart disease. From thay Tiae on until

olose of war general KREBS, depuiy chief of the general staff, took over

the command.

t the tlne when we were detached to this daty in fall 1942 the
Mihrer's headquarters, oalled “Wehrwolf", were in a forest near Winniza,
Ukrainia, Rassia, sinoe 1 November 1942 in a foresi near Rastenburg
(Fast Prussia), called "WOLFSCHANZE", and since the end of 1944 uniil
oclose of war in the Reich Chancelry in Berlin, only interrupted by a

L]

stay of some weeks in a headquarvers near Bad Nanheim, western Germany,

- 4w Wy 20

% No. 2ethles was Chefote, A nge'.nﬂi*rmeef thes,
¢A4f¢ﬂ.s+,d;r OB W7t — D.irving

e~ ¢ mminreman 4 B = - R



called "Adlernhorst®, miring the ‘"battle of the bulge". Sometimes tne.
Finrer wenf to his house in Derchitesgaden in order to rest for & waile.,
Even then, however, short daily meetings took place. ihen iling BORIS

of sulgaria or iUSSCLINI or HORYHY or TISO or any other representative
of i allied country oeme %o see HITLIR during his stay at sercutesgadel

the daily meetings were neld at the castle of Klegsheim near Salzourg,

The Iiarer was of an extreme severiiy eanaerniﬁg officers of all
ranks wao, in his opinion, had proved to be traivors and whose numbder
inoreased during tﬁe segond half of the war, especially towerds its
end. That is the reason for his cancelling the court martiels and
establishing & special court-under Gen.iaj. HUEBNER wihose task was to
condenn every offence of that kind on the spot. On the otaer hand he
highly appreciated every brave soldier no matter whether he was friend
or FHEMF, officer or enlisted man. For instance he repeateﬂly praised
the Jugoslavian marshal TITO wao formerly had been a simple anuenaker 2
journeyman, as far as we were told, and now had proved to be & man of '
highest qualities which he compared to those of many a German general.

He likewise did not ﬁeny'hia regpect to marshal STALIN who, in his

opinion, was the only opponent equivalent %o him.

he Fihrer's own conditions of life or mode of life were verﬁ
mndest.'ﬂutsidgmnf the ﬁeich Chancelry in Berlin, i.é. in his various
neadquarters, he i;;éafin“réiaiiggigmiimple and small rooms and in &
really modest way, as far &s we could see Ifrom Soue aeqasiﬂﬂé. ilhere

always seemed to be & big difference Eetween-hia mode of life and that

- 0 -
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+ 0f the Xeichsmarshal GOERING, and that in every respect. It cannot be
denied, huwevér, that the Fihrer's most intimate attendance, his adju-
tants and persons veing presen? &t his meals, a8 for iinstance Frafeaaarﬂ
Heinrich HGFFMLEﬁ, did not like this modest way of living, but on the
contrary seemed %o appreciate nothing more than drinking und doing use=-
less or even worse work. Even when the military situation of Germany
turned out more and more bad, the& didlnnt stop their habits, so that

we often were ﬂisguste&.

P .

The Fiihrer was a very energetical and fanatical wan. He was a de=-
moniac, possessed by the idea to secure & happy fuiture to the German
people, not minding any resistance and using all his power to break it.
Wonen he finally had to reaagﬁize, that his idezs were wrong and that |
the power of the allied nations was stronger than nis own will, there
was only one way left to nim, the wﬁy to die, because for a man like
nim it mast have been impossible to aufvive the total defeat of his

ideas.

Being bombed out in Berlin and since having no own apariment
any notes or letters ocould be sent from you %o me via the address
of Dr. REYNITZ, Berlin - Lamiwitz, Kaiser Wilhelm-Str. 71.
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My

lote for caE?f HANSEN |

HEINZ BUCHHOLZ

My home-address is: BERLINLFRIEDENAU, Bachestr. 8 —

—

e

EE;ET39'yéars old (born on T4 Narch 1906 in Berlin).

- I attended the Elementary school from 1912 till 1915, the
Public school from 15915 $ill 1924. From 1924 to 1929, I studied for
the laws at Berlin University. Besides that, I was employed as
verbatim reporter at the Prussian Diet, starting 1 September 1525,

After Hitler took over, I was transferred to the stenographers
office of the German REICHSTAG. There I was employed till 1945 as
Reichstagsstenograph, i.e. an official of senior civil service, with
the title "Regierungsrat!

Since October 1939, I was a member of the Wenrmicht (air foree, ,
air base troops), at last as Sgt. on the Eastern front. In august
1942, 1 was ordered to Field Marshal WMILCH's headquarters in perlii
48 verba tim r¥eporter..

In December 1942, I was detached to the stenogra ghic service |
4in the FUHRIR's headquarters, although I was not a member of the '
Party or SS; but there were no other stenographers who could ‘do this
difficult work of noting down the military discussions verbatim and |
accurately, |

I was present at the briefing on 20 July 1944 when an
attempt on HITLER's life was made. I refer to the special report
I gave about this attempt.(%r¢i./ )

Dachau, 13 Dec 1945 ﬂfiﬁzdaaf/?%bhﬁgiidﬁi_
: <
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= "
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The treatment of political prisoners in concentration camps

was naver discussed in the briefings with Adolf Hitler at which L was
presant. The reason lies in the fact that this gquestion did not im-
madiat~ly concern th= conduct of the war but was of a police and ad-
ministrative character. lherefors, the Fihrer did not mention this
matter to his military. Lt was unimaginable that one of the briefang
participants should have opened this question, in view of the entire '
character of thes~ brisfings.

. The. danper reason probably lLies in the fact that -- as, since
1493%, in.thne entire German public =-- a vail of silence had been spread
intentionally about the question of political prisoners and their treat-
ment, which also was not lifted in the closer surroundings of the
Fihrer. ihe basic order & the Fiihrer that no one was to receive know-
L~dge of a secret matter of which he did not have to have knowledge
was also valid for this case and with spmcial emphasis.Thecircle of
those in the know had been kept very small, and the topic was Mot =D
touchad upon unofficially, tfor reasons which i fully und~rstand only -
now. . am convinced that such questions have always been treated
batwean the Fihrer and Reichsfuhrer SS Himmler in strict confidence.
Wspecially in the last half year, such conversations between these
two often took place, usually bofore, or after a briefing at which
Himmler appeared.

VWithin the frame of his g-neral political discussions, ultler

had occasionally made remarks to thr »ffect that an antire collapse .
could not take place during this war brcause the "criminalelements",
the "underworld" had remained 1n certain safe-keeping and that he had
the unconditional trust of Himmler that the latter guaranitmd him
internal safefy.At a sprcial occasion he remarked som~what clearer
that he would order Himmler to ~X{erminate these ~lements befora they
could become dangerous if Germany over were to get into a atical
position. 1t does not appear doubtful that not only criminals had
b-»~n m~ant, who nad been sentenced according to ths goneral criminal
law, but also at le~ast a part of those in prison because of political
r~asons, whom n~ considered,political criminals’, which would be in
accordance with his basic principles. When the critical situation
for Uermany emerged more and more 1n the beginning of 1LY45, the
Flihrer did not refer to this thought, at leagt not in brisfings in
which L was present. However, . believe that nimmler nad already
issuad definite directives for this caga,

During a briefing in the beginning of 1Y45, tne rihrer came to
speak about the treatment of shot-down enemy airmen for ths last time,
1f 1 rem~mbmsr correctly, he made som~ general remarks about the
Urnava Uonvention and had com~ to speak of the Luftwaffe; ne crivti- -
cizn~d it for being afraid of unconditional preceesding against /enemy
airmen in order to ovade r~prisals on 1ts own m~mbers 1n allied
captivity. sh»n Luftwaffe still wanted to conduct the war in a "grntle-
a man's fashion" and had not yet barn convinced that in this faight
of life~ and death any false considerations had to bes abstained from.
The Russian had shown what could b~ reach~d by a cons~quential, incon-
siderate proce-ding. +he verman airmen could not be brought over Moscow
égihnningrad "for their lives", after the Russians started to "ligqui-
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date' German airmen and inach cases simply published that "enemy
paratroopers had been found and sxterminated". Hitler again asked
when this wald psn~trate de=per also into the h~ads of the German
military authorities. more and more, getting into a state of strong
anragoment, h=a finally ordar=d, catngorinally, that all recently
capturad enemy.piots were to pe'transferred to tne SD.". L certainly
Eruniiny remember that the Chi~f of the RSHA, Kalienbrunner,was
pr-~sent at this discussion, mu%x howaver, he nﬂlthpr causad this order
nor remarked anything about it. -- 4 had the impression that nost

of th~ participants had peen uncomfortably Jjolted by this strict
order, and 1 personally considered it as an outbreak of a m~ntal
collapse, ==~ . do not remember that the execution of this order was
aver raported to th~ Flihrer. L'he Fiihrer did not mention tnis matter
again. .n conversations, 1L overheard that the order actually had not
barn eXacuted, = 1 do not know whether, upon Later direction of the

Fihr~r or withuut hls knnwlndgﬂ.
; ' - . . - J&;?M
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THE ATTELPT ON ADOLF HITLER'S LIFE ON 20 JULY 1544

LEye witness account by Reichstagsstenogragh, Heglerungsrat BUCHLOLZ,
ex-member of the Stenographic Service in the FUHHRER Hq.

The- }ithﬁmi on the life of Adolf HITLER on 20 July 1944 tooln place
in the FUHRER Hq. "Wolfsschanze", a compound of bunkers and barracks in
1 forest, about 6 km. eazst of RASTENBURG in Bist Prussia. The scene of

the attempt was a barracks in which one room was used for the daily
situation ﬂiscuésioné.
On 20 July 1944 the time for the briefing haa been set 2t 1230 hours,
It began punctually with abriefing on the situation on the Zistern Front
by Gen. HEUSINGER of the Army General Staff. At the begianing all parti-
cipants were not yet present. About 1235 hours Field liarshall IEITEL
arrived, accompanied by a few men, among them Col. Count ST;UFFEKB:RG
vho did not belong to the, regular participants. STIUFFENBERG had to draft
ihe activation of a new type of divisions, the "VOLKSGREN..DIZR" divisions
‘or the Commander of the Replacement Army in Berlin and had been ordered
into the Hg. for a report to the FUHRER. The FUHRLR did not recognize
S TWUFFZiBERG, because until then, STLUFFINBERG nad veen at the briefiags
nly once among a larger numver of people. Field larshall KBITEL intro-
luced STAUFFENBERG to the FUHRER with the fDllGWln& words: "Col., Count
TLFIIBERG, the man who is working on the new activations". is usuzl,
ne Fileld liarshall stepped to the left of the FUMREE, while STAUFFENSZRG |
emained to the right, somewhat in the background. :
A few minutes later, about 1240 hours, STAUFFENBERG was called to
he telephone and thereupon left the barracks with the remark thit he !
ad to go to another office in the'camp,.asfwas later on established by |
he testimony of the switchboard operator in one of the ante-roous.
About 1245 hours an explosion took place in the conference room. I/
‘emember it as a thundering connected with a bright, yellow flame and
leveloping of thick smoke. Glass and wood sylintareﬁ'é%augh toe air., Tﬁe :
arge table on which all the situation mups were sprexud and around which i
ne participants were standing -- cnly tane stenographers were sitting == |
ollapsed. After a few seconds of silence, I neard a vclce, probably
'deld Harshall KEITEL, calling: "VWpere is the FthLH?" Then further
2lls and expressions of pain arose. - ' i
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Like several other participants, I left the room timugh the window
located behind me, because the exit through the door was barred to me.
I saw HITLER; supported, I believe, by Fileld larshall KEITEL and his
sexvsnd valet, walk from the barracks tohis bunker quarters, approximate-
ly 75 meters distant. He had left the conference room through the doorx
located immediately benind him and had rejected all attempts to carry
h-im outs Following him came further participants, part of them quite
injured, bleeding, nhands and face blackened apnd burned, hair singed
and dyed yellow, uniforms soiled and torn. The most serious injured
were carried from the room and bedded on the lawn before the bzrracks
by officials of the SD. The FUHRER's physicians arrived immediately,
further medical aid arrived shortly afterwards, the wounded were aided
and transported to the Hospital KARILSHOF nezr RASTENBURG, After the
1attempt the conference room was a scane of conplete disorder., _

lost participants, even the FUHRER himself, supposed that the bomb
had veen thrown into the ground level room from the outside through
the opened window. The second thought was that the explosive had been
planted under the floor. It was eliminated by the fact thut the ex-
piesdve floor boards had been pressed ,down and not torn up by the ex-
plosion. The investigations on the same afternocon brought out that the
explosive had been brought into the confexence.room in a brief cise
by Col. GDHQEH?T1UFFhHB;RGa It was usual that the participants brought
along documents, maps, etc, -in brief cases. It was not conspicuous,
therefore, to the security guard in the ante-room thit STiUFFEIBERG
was carrying a brief case, 1

He had placed the brief case under the table around which the
participants were standing and had himself called away by a prearranged
telephone call from his adjutant. He had gone to the parking lot, a
few hundred meters distant, had waited for the explosion there and then
vgs driven to the air field, fifteen minutes distant, in RASTELBURG,
with his adjutant. Through the arrangement of one of the officers on .
'the staff of the camp commandant, he could still pass the gate guards
although an alarm had already been sounded., At the air field, a ccurierj,
plane had been W%ting for him with which he flew to BERLIN. Tliere he
went to the office building of the Commander of the Replacement Army
and reported the succe-ss of the attempt to the assembled co-conspirat-
ors, mhafgupon started the attempt to take over the governuwent in Berlin
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ifter the failure of the attempt, STAUFFENBERG was shot in thelbuilding
of the Commander of the Ha?lgcement Army by a high-ranking officar, whao
was said not to have any part in the conspiracy; I believe I heard it ==
was Col.Gen, FROMM, the Comusnder of the Replacement Army, himself,

STAUFFENBERG could expect the attenpt to hive succeeded for two
reasons: '

First: He had placed the brief case with the explosive under the
w3p table at the inside of the right table support, hardly two meters
away from ADOLF HITLER's feet (see a on appended sketch), Col. BRANIT,
who was standing at that place and who was disturbed by this brief
case at his feet placed it somewhat further to the right to the outside
of the supportd (see b on the appended sketch) after STLUFFENBERG's
leaving, so that now the strong wooden table support was between the
place of explosion and the FUHRER's ahdomen, Towards the ceiling the
impact of the explosion was stopped by the thick, missive tavle  plate,
which completely broke up into splinters.

In the se-cond place, STAUFFENBERG may not have known that the
building;—which looked like a bunker from the guiside, really was no
bunker, but only a wooden barrack provided with splinter protactingl
measures, The barracks had been surrounded by stone walls and a weak
concrete layer had been lain over the roof., However, under it the ori-
ginal barrack had remained unaltered. The blast of the explosion thus
did not stay in: . the room like in a bunker but continued tlwough the
entire barracks affer breaking the wooden walls, ceiling and floor;
thus, no limitation was present., '

The consequences of the explosion were samaller, also, because 1t
was not a bomb, but an explosive without metal coat. It lacked the
iron splinter effect, like, for instance; a hand grenade, An iron bomb
in the brief case might perhaps have been discovered because of the
form and w-elght, especially, because STAUFFENBERG, whose lower arm
nad been amputated, had to coynt uﬁhn the case being carried by an
orderly occasionally. '

The type of explosive and the time delay fuse me-~chanism could
be found out later from a second piece of the same explosive which was
found in the woods on the way to the air Tield. STAUFFENBEEG had thrown :
it out of the moving ve-hnicle there, according to the statement of the |
driver. The time delay fuse was not a clock work mechanism but some-
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thing like this o T received knowledge of this from an investigator
——: Out of a samll pipe which could be opeéned by'a pincers pressure,
an acid poured upon a metal wire keeplng =2 hamuer spring tensioned.
ifter the wire had been corroded by the acid, tae spring becaue free
and the hammer, similar to a pistol, stroke agsinst an igniter, waich
exploded the charge.

SDOLF HITLER had suffered a strong shock of the right lower arm
by the up=blasting tavle plate, on waich he had supported himself
when standing, furtner lighter burns and injuries on the right leg
—= the-uniform Trousers had been torn and singed -- and slight
scratches uf“theméﬁzh by splinteis:_ﬂesides that both eardrums had
been injured, as more or less with all participants; one gardrum
had become perforated S0 that the hearing ability had been reduced
for a longer period after the attempt. This was especially obvious
at telephon®e conversations. The PUHRER rejected an eight day rest
in bed advised by the physician, Shortly after the attempt Reichs~
parschall GORING and Reichsfilrer SS STMMIER arrived for a conference
on the measures to be taken. On the same afternoon, he received the
TUCE end had a conference with him, In the evening he agaln presided
over the daily evening briefing.

0f other pEriisizxmis participanis, the following were mnost

severely injured: ‘.

One of the stenographers on duty, HEINRICH BERGER, whose twWo
legs were torn off up to the knees -nd whose face and hands were
severely burned; he died on the same day. i

Gol., GSC, BRANDT, whose one leg was torn oﬂfrﬁlsa died during
the night of the same day.

Gen., 4.C., KORTEN, whose abdomen wWas pierced and penetrated
by a large woad'splintar; ne Gied on the following day.

Maj,Gen. SCHIUNDT, w ho received a serious shank injury and had
lost an eye though a splinter; he died after several weeks on the
hospital. _ 3 '

A part of the other pafticipanms suffered serious injuries,
especially burns on their hands and faces, whic h required nospital=-
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ization for several weeks or several months. Some escaped with
lighter injuries. Those who died and those who were seriously in-
jured had all stood at the right half of the table, thiat is, to
the right of ADOLF HITLER; those who were lightly injured had stood

to his left, for the most part. .
Altogether, the attempt affected the following:

1. Died of their injuries:
Gen.,A.C., XORTEN, Chief of the General Staff of the Luftwaffe,
llaj.Gen, SCHMUNDT, Chief Wehrmacht adjutant to the FUHRER,
Col. GSC BEANDT, Assistant G-3 of the G-3% Section of the Army
: General Staff,
BELRGER, stenographer on duty

2. Seriously injured: ’ .
Mzj.Gen. HEUSINGER, AC of 8, G-3 of the Army General Staff,
Lt.Gen., A.C,, BODENSCHATZ, Representative of the Heichsaars chall
Birg,.Gen, SCHLRFF, HilitaTy Historian,

Vice Admiral VOSS, Representative of the HNavy,

Capt.(Navy) ASSLIANN, " " NG _

Rear Admiral VON PUTTKAMMER, Wehrmacht adjutant tp the FUHRIR,
Col. VON BELOW R " woow "
Lt.Col. BORGMANN R e, " h ",

3. Less seriously injured::
Gen. JODL, Chief of the Wehrmacht Leadership Staff,
Lt.Gen. BUHLE, in the lYehrmacht Supreme Command,
Gruppenfithrer (Lt.Gen.) FEGELEIN, Representative of the Reicha-
i ' filhrer S5
Maj. JCHN VON FREYEND, Adjutant of Field Marshal KEITZL,
4. Slightly injured: '
Field HMarshal XEITEL, Chief of the Wehrmacht Suprmemne Command,
laj.Gen, WARLIWMONT, Deputy Chief of the Vehrmacht Leadersnip
Stad
Ambassador VON-SONNLEITHNER, Representative of the Foreign ;
Office
Lt.Col, WAIZENEGGER of the Welruacht Leadership Staff, =
L.:aa 5 BL}'GHE " n t ) 1] n’
Hauptsturnfihrer (Capt.) Ginsche,sfxikeximhiixchixisaderskin
i T e st ) gParsanal Adjutant o the Fokver Gkacff
Heglerungsrat BUGHHDLE?magggggfa;har on duty.,

All injured were decorated with "Wounded Iﬁsignia“ (GE, to
Purple Heart lMedal) in Gold, Silver or Black, in a special design
with the inscription "ADOLF HITLER"™ and the date, 20 July 1944.

_ Up to the time of the attempt the men who appeared before tihe
FUHRER were not examined. By order of the FUHRER, all participants
had to submit their brief casés for a search after the attenpt, the
persons who did not belong. to the regularly present conference par-
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+ ticipants, even high-ranking officers, had to submit to a short
search of their bodies. Only a few of the highest military and Party
leaders were excepted,

I remember the pxzerpetrator, Count STAUFIENBIRG; as a tall,
slender appearannca,'dark-ﬁairad and dark-compexicned. Among other
decorations he wore the German Cross in gold, and he had been serlous-
ly injured during the war., As I heard, he had driven on a mine &u:ing
the Africa Campaign. He had one of his lower arms”ﬁmpu&tated and, I
believé, an artificial eye. When I made his acquaintance on the
"Berghof" in early summer 1944, his staring view struck me. On the
day of the attempt he wore a, 6 black patch over one of his eyes.

Be rchtesgaden, 14 July 1945

4" Adolf Hitley \V
2 Gew.Lt Hv_i..u.sfujer"

3 uﬁe_r‘&t Br.qﬂdt T

4 Gan.H:ﬂ. -Si-[‘:mmwfﬂ"
5 Gen. (A.C) Kovlew t
G

Field M. Keitel :
T Gen. jaaH
g .ff:najmi-uhﬁ- Btrjer'r
9 R‘rﬂﬂﬁn‘j eye ~wilness
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| 1) I, Erioch Kempka, was born on 16. 9. 1910 at Obverlhausen/ihine=-

.2) In the evening of EnthVAyril 1945 I got ‘the order to gaﬁ

5 - !
Tranglation . /

Berchﬁéagéaan, 20th June, 1945

Testinony
_ of '
¥z, Erich _Kemp E a on tho last days of llitler:

‘land as tho son of a miner. I have 9 brothors and sistors.
Whereas uy father died in January 1945, my sother is llving |
at Oberhausen.. I attended the elementary school up to ny 14th |
year of age and sorved an apprenticeship as electriciah. [
Aftor my apprenticeship I worked for one yesr as a pra¢ticel
appgantiua.ﬁith the automobile-distributers of DiW at Essen. , i
Then I got & position as a driver with the "Lssenexr Hatlonual- j

* Zeltung", which position I held until 1932.  Ieing a member E
of  the NSDAP since !lay 1530 I ocame as a chauffaur to Adolf :
Ilitler by recommendatlon of ¢auleiter.Terboven for whon I had !
done very much driving. In the years of 1932 to L1936 I,besides j
prigadefilirer Schreok,was a chauffeur for about 95 % of all |
tha'trips of the Mihrer. Since 1936 I was tile sole chauffeur

' of the Fihrer. The IFihrer Himself never Grove 4 car.

supervisor of tie Reichs~Chancellery garage, e whioh about
40 vehicles belonged. I was in charge of about 6C drivers.
' Already in the days before 20°" April 1945 I also passed tle
nlghts in the garage situated in the bussuent of the ileichs-~
Ghﬂncallary; On Euth April 1945 I went for about one quarter
of an hour to the Flihrer's bunker in order to congratulate the
+ Fllhrer upon his birthday. Thersc was no special ceremony in -
the Fibrersbunker .

i
|
When Hitler stayed in Berlin with his headquarters I was f
1
|
!
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ready about 12 vehlicles by means of which persons belonging
to the Pibrer's headqumarters and partly their relatives weore
 taken %o the Berliu airfields Staaken, Tempelhof, Schinwalde,
Gatow. These were about B0 persons, among then rear-aduiral
ve -Pubtkanpr [adjutant of the.navy with the pFithrer), &S=
Sturnbaanfliinrer Gohler (rﬁpfasantative of SS8=Gruppenfiihror
regelein), Hiss Schroder and liiss Wolf (two personal secreta-
ries of the Pillirer). Also on £15% April 1945 a nuuber of —d
‘'vehioles was readled with which were driven 40 to 50 persons
to savaéal'airfial&s, Cars for a direot drive from Berlin %o 252.
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Munich were not dispatched by me before or after this datc.
During the nigh% of 22 to 23 of April 1945 the porsonsl phy-
slcian of the Pubrer, Prof. Dr. Morell, two stenvgraphers of
the Pihrer, the consulate-secretary Déhler and soveral women
were driven %o the airfield of Golow. '

. Though I did not get any dafiaita statoment from authorized
sources, 1 supposed that the Filhrer would remain in Derlin
aftor the £2.4.1945. During the dags before 20 April 1945

I often heard the utteranve of the ﬁuﬂrer that he. would reuain
in Berlin in any oases in the days after 20 April 1945 I e~ |
peatedly asked Sturmbannfilhrer Gilnsche (adjutant of the Fﬂhrarj
vhether I was 'to seoure the vehicles because theywere graduallj
destroyed by artillery-fizre. SS-Sturmbanafihrer Glinsche told
me that would not make any difference, we hed to go on with _
the vehicles as loag as possible; the Fihrer at any rate would
stay at the Reichs-Chancellery. I do not know very much about |

the military situation in the town-distriot because I did not |

leave the Reichs~-Chancellery. The buildings of the Reichg=~
Chancellery in.the days alter £2 April 1045 were repeatcdly

sot afire. The fires wers axtiﬁguishe& only very primltively.
Communications to the outside were cut gince abouy 25 April
1946+ In these days a story was digtributed by the Cerman
proess-bureau that Himmler had turncd to tthastorn poviers and
had stated the Fibrer was sufforing from a corebral bonorrhage,|
.wog completely ill and would not be able o live For much
longers I had not read myself this story which was said %o
have been printed in the-newspapers. As far as I could see,
Himmler did not appear in the Relchs-Chancellery &urinu the
days around 20 April 1945 or latez. |

(Remark of reporter: Himmler wanted to sce the Fihror on |
<%441945. The Pithrer who did not wani o be swayed from
his resolution %o stay in Berlin by anybody, declared
that Himmler should nobt come.)

Only on the 1 May 1946 I heard that the Russians had infiltray-
od into the Tiexgarten on whioh the Ruiuha—ﬂhancallefy borders
and had udvanaad to the Ra;chstau.

|
1

. |

The minister of Zoroign affairs von Ribbentrop éid not sce the

' Fihrer as far as 1 recolleot ab any rate not alter the 20.4.
1945, : '

. : ' .
ATVer 22.4.1945 the following still stayed with the Fihrer:
Cenieral Xrebs (chief of goensral-gsiafZ of the army), General-
Burgdoxf . (chlaf adjutant of the Vehrmaoht and ohief of tho
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of Grand-Admiral ﬁﬁnitz),_ﬂaichslaiter Partin Pormaan, Relohse
minister Dr. Goabhéls with his wife, secretary of state in
the ministery for propaganda. Dr. Faumann, Sg-Aaupisturmiihres
Schwogerxann as adjutant of Dr. Goebbels, SS~-Gruppenfilirezr

Fegelein (representative of Roichsfithrer &S with the rlihxrer), !

SS-Sturmbsnnfithrer Ginsche (adjutant of the iithrer), gu-Sta:m-
bannfihrer  Linge (valet of the rithrer), Se-Gruppoaflhrer
Rattenhuber (leader of the £D in the Fihrer's headguariers),
58-Standartenfithror Dr. Stumpfepser (the Fihrei's Tirst phy-
sician after Prof. Dr. llorell had left). I personally saw
Reichslelter iartin Bormann geveral times up o the morning
of 2 Xay 1“45. It 1s impossible that he could hale been at
Berchtesgaden or vicinity botweon 22 ﬂpril 1445 and 2 lLiay |
1945. The chlldren of Relchsministor Dr. Gcahhelﬂ who wera
brought %o the bunker of the Reichs=Chancellery on 22.4.1945,
were talten away with & nurse only on 1 lay 1945 from the

_ Reichs=Chancellery.

Fioldmarshall ‘Keitel and Col.General Jodl according to vhab
1 have seen and haﬂggfguax_hu?a left Berlin alroeady on 22 5
 April 1943. : _ : i

55=Cruppen?iliver Fegelein telephoned me, I beliove, in the ;
afternoon of 28.4.1945 and asked we io come Lo svo him in
"~ the Flhrer-bunker in {the evening in order 10 raceive there
important papers concerning the Tihrer, the Reichsfilthrer $3
and himgelf personadly inm order to destroy all or %o hide
thom 80 well that {thay could not be found in case the Husslans
ghould ocome thruughf%ha Reichs-Chancollery. I went %o the !
FPillwrer-bunker towards evening in order to weoi LULH~-Gruppen— |
fiihrer Fegelein. I did not meet PFegelein. Relohsleiter iartin |
Bormann asked me where Fogelein were. I ocould tell Reichsleiw
ter Bormann that 55~Gruppenfithrer Fegelein had ordered a 04z
- and had driven to his dwelling. They endeavoured to find
Fegelein., later on I heard thai SS~Gruppeufilirer rFegelein Pa&
rmappaared at-the Heichs-Chancellery in ocivilian clothes aud '
‘had been intarrugaégahEEE?ﬁ“hy a- 58=gruppentiihrer Riller whom |
I had never seen before and who was sald to beloag 1o the 55=
Hauptant or %o tho SD. regelein is gaid to have aduitied be-
fore Iiller that he before sevéral times had beon at Fouen in'
order to meset the Reiochsflihrer 55 there; he had endeavoured
to get out of the Rniahs-chancailary end let the Russians

;. N : | : - .
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T immer port of Berlim-in ordexr not to let the food fall into

.tals situated in the governument-disirict. In the Relchs-Chan-
. cellery itself thore was au Haupiverbandsplatz (Batdalion aid-!

pass him and try to get through to %the Koicheflhrer 85 in
oivilian clothes. According %o what I had been told Fegolein
was declared guilty of hightraasnn and shot by order of Su- .
Grappenfilhrer Killer.

. In the days after the 20.4.1945 I have still seen Hitler

several times in his bunker in the Reichs=Chancellery. Ilo had .
not ohanged in his behaviour and gave a quiet impression. Eva |
Braun stayed with the Filhrver. After 28.4.1045 there woro
rumours in the Relchs=Chancellery that the rilrer had boen

.married during the night from 28.%0 29.4.1945 %o Eva Draun.- | .

A Reglerungsrat or Oberregiorungsrat of the ministexry for
propaganda had perforned the offivial ceremony. At the same |
time two urderliaﬂ hiad been married. There was no Quhllﬂutlﬁn @

- of the marriaga of the Pihrer to Eva Braun. I also did not

congratulate the rilhrer. Only on 1 lay 1945 seoretary of Jt&ﬁﬁ
Dx. Naumann gonfirmed the faat of the marr;awa oZ the  rihror.

I spoke to the Iithrér for the last{ time on 29 April 194G. I
roported to him thaet I was enguaged in bringing food into the

|
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|

|

=

1
the hands of the Russlaus and in order %0 provide tho hospi=- |
[

station). The hotel "Adlon", the building of the Cauleitung |
of the NSDAP of Berlin,and other buildings hod beon converied |
into hogpitals. The bunkers of the Reichs-Chancellery \lure |
several hundreds of wounded had boen quarterad, had not suf-

fered any dawage by the artillerpy-fire. There was no ensmy :
infantezy attack against the haxchs—ﬂhanaallary antil the mar-
ninu of 2 pay 19456. :

S) Cn 30 April 1945 at 1430 hours 88=-Sturwubannfitbrer Ciunsche - ale-

phonad me and asked me %o oome to the Filhrer-bunker. Bosides |
that I was to toke caro that 5 cans of gasoline, that is to |
say 200 lir., were brought alongs I at once took along two '
or three mwen carrying the caus. lore men were following becaus
it took sowme tiwe'to colleot 230 lir. of gasoline. By order |
of Suy=-Sturmbanniiihrer Gilnsche the cans werc brought by these
men to the entrance of the iihrer-bunker located in the gaxr-
den of thoe Reichs=-Chsancellery, which was naext to the snuﬂallaﬁ
towsr-home and about 20 m beside the’ so-called Haus Kempka,

my quarters (see drawing aanex numhar 1l)e The men at oace
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, ¥eturned after- doposing the cang. There was & gentyy of the
SD at the entrance of the bunler./I then wout into the anto-

ohambre of the briefing-room ( see room IIX, annez 2 ) whoro

I met Sturmbannithrer Giinscho. Gllnsche told me that the

.Mihrer was dead. He did not tell me ony .details about 4ho

 death of the Fihror. He only explained he had got tho oxdex
from the Fiuhrer to burn hdm at once efter his death so that !
he would not be oxhibitod-at a Russisn froak-shows A short
time alfter that SE-Sturmbannfithrer Lihga ( valed of the _
Fibrer ) and an orderly whom I do not remeuber caume Trom Lho
private' zoom of the Plihrer ( see woom I, annox 2 ) carrying
& oorpse wrapped in an ordinary Rield-gray blanket. Based
oa the previous information from S§-Obersturmbaunfihrer
Ginsche I at onoe supposed that it was the corpse of the

- Pihrer. One oould only see the long black trousers and the
black shoes which the Fihrer usually wore with his field=-
gray uniform Jjackel, Under these circumstances there was no
doubt that it was the corpse of the Iihrer. I could not
.ahéerva_any.ﬁpnts of blood ony the body vaapped in the
blankete. Therupon came Reichsleiter Vartin Dormana from the |
living-room of the Fihrer and oarried in his arms the corpse |
of lirs. Eve Hitlex, née Braun. He turned the coxpse over to !
me.« 2rs. Hitler were a dark dress. I did not have the faalxn-:-J

- ¥hat the oorpse was still warm. I could hot recognise any
injuries on the body. The dress was slightly damp oanly in the.
region of the heart. Behind Reichsleiter Bormana thero came |
also Reicheminister Dr. Gocbbels. SS-Sturmbannfillivor iLinge

- 6nd the orderly now went upstairs with the corpse of tho

Fihrer %o the bunker exit towards the garden of the Relcho=

Chancellery ( see annex 1, Turmhiuschen ). I Tollowed with

the ocorpse of lirs. Pitler. Behind me came Reichsleiter Bor-

mann, Dre. Coebbelg and *“-Stzrmhennfﬁhre: Glinsches leichs=-

leiter Martia Bormann wore uniform. According to my rﬂcnllaaﬁ%_,

ion Dzr. Coebbels alsc wore uniform. I% was shortly before

1500 hours, if I remombor that I received the first noilco |

|
|

i
|
|
|
|
|
i
|
|
i

froa Giinsohe at 1430 hours and needed 5 to 10 minutos to
reach the Fﬁhrar-hunker:!Ssnﬁturmhannfﬁhrar Linge and the
“ordsrly-carried the oorpse of the Fihrer from the wostward
Lirgetiadbunker exit in the tower-house and put the wrapped
corpse on the flat ground in a small depression which was
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T —aboul 4 to b m distant from the hﬁnk@r exit ( cee the spot
udzked by two orosses on annex 1 ). There was no lawn rather
bare sand; in the last period consirucilon work was being

{k/ﬂona in the naiahs-channallerj. I pub the corpse of Nys. ;
Iitler next 1o the Flhror's. Immadiately-ﬁE_L$u:mua ;uhﬂ&iLf’H“;
Ginsche poured the complete contents of the five cané{éva‘('"c |

the two corpses and ignited the fuel. Reichsleitoer llartin Dor- E

mann, Reichsminister Dr. Goebbels, S8~-5tuZmbanniithror Gilasche, |
55-Sturmbannfithrer Linge, the orderly and I stood la the [
bunker entrance, looked towards the fire snd all saluted with |
raised handa./Thﬂ stay in the bunker exit lastied only & shortd
Gimo haaauaa ‘the garden of the Reichs-Chancelleiy was undex
haavy artillary-fira. Ths shori~-lasting leaving oi the bunker |
exlt already mweant & danger 10 our lives. The pground of %he
garden of the Roichs~-Chancellery was ploughed by shell holes.
Bepides us the event could only have Leecn .observed by the

tower post of the SD.’ Th1H one hcwavaa wag not notified ol
what nad happened. '

i
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Upon returning into the Fihrer-bunker no words vere ezchanged. !
Gilnsche, iLinge and another person wenl into the living-room ol |
the rithrer. In order to return to the garage I had 1o pass i
through the Fihrer-bunker and wanted to look onoe moro at fue |
roows in which the Fihrer had lived last. I followed %the peT=- 1
gonnel meniioned into the living-room of the [ihrer. Opposite i
the entrance of thw room the dimensions of which are only i
3 x 4 m stood a narrow sopha (see drawing annex 3). Befoxe the |
right front leg of the sopha (coupare a) lay a Walther-Pistol, i
6.35 mm cal.,which, as I knew, belonged %o I'iss Lva Broun. |
~ Also on the floor approximately before the middle of the sopha |
lay & Walther-Pistol, 7.65 mm cal. I supposed that this pistol |
belonged to the Fihrer. I myself? did not touch snything ia-%he i
‘room, but sllently stodd there only for a few seconds. I did - |
not put any questions and no one else spoke to me. According !
to tho situation it was clear to me that the Fihrer and ¥Miss Zvi,
Braun shot khomselves. From the location of the two pistdls I :
corcluded that the Filhrer sat sbout on the middle of ihe sopha |
before firing the shot and that Lva Braun had: set on the xight
pari of the sopha. . '

-



After returning fo the garage I notified my men that the
Fithrer was dead., A osremonial was not held. 1 cannot say
for whioh resson the date of deatik of the Fithrer was given

———as 1 Mey 1945 over the radio. I cannot say wiih complete

SUreness thut the death of the Flhrer, as previocusly described,

~took place on 30 April 1945. For on . the sawme evening Geaeral

4)

Krebs had lead nagdtiatinns for ths return of the woanded
with the Russian general Tschukow. It wmay be expected, that.
ceneral EKrebs regarded the continnation of the fight alier

the death of the Fiihrer a&s futile. 5o far as I know nothing
was done later on to remove any traces of the corpses at the
ﬁlawé of their burning. This also wes not necessary, because
tho traces had been wiped out by the uninterrupied artillery-
fire on the gouverneuent d;strict. '

In the late -afternoon of 1 May 1945 I received official
notioce from E“h“turmhaunﬁﬁhrer Gunﬁcha, whu vwas the DDL@ﬂLdaﬂu
of the ieichs=-Chancellery, that on the same evening at 2100 -

. -hours the break from the Ghanoallary was to take place. ALl |

men who were able to walk and wanted to go along as well as
the women who had belonged t0 the Pihrers surrounding were
to toke part. SS-Brigadefilhrer Mohnke was destined as the

- leader of the group %o break out:. he had previously & cowbat-
- group withid the governwent district. The persons included

in the hreak assémhlaﬁlat 2100 hours in th: coal=-bunker of

the nﬁwJRaiahs—ChBHOallary, before tho iiauptverbandsplatz.

- The nwaber of persons assewbled there may have amo.inted Irom

1
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500 to 700, awong them & aumber of women. /4l available wea- |

pons, rifles, submachine-guns, pistols, autouaiic carabins,
light-machine-guns and Pangerfiusto were distributed o the
conbat-groups 1 to 6. Brigadefilhrer ljohnke took the lead and
lead compat—groﬁp La ambaﬁﬂa&urrﬁewal (representative of the

roreign-minister in the Filhrer's headquarters), SS-Gturmbaan= |

flihrer Glinsche as well &as the mxé"ﬂ* cnristian (wife of
Brige Gea. Christian of the Luftwaffe), krs. Junge, lilss
Krilger, the secretaries of the iiihrer, velonged %o combat-
group 1, about So to 60 persons. The men and woumen singly
left the Ghancaliary through a narrow hole in the wall along
Wilhelm=3traBe near the corner "of yilhelm-gtraze and Voss~-
otraie. Because of the heavy artillery-fire everyone ran as

-7 -
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yuickly as possible %u the nexi entrance of the wubway in
reach. The next entrance of the Yaiserholf-stop avout 50 n
from the building of the keiohs-Chancellery had oollapsed aftor .
a direot artillery~hit. Therefore we went to the entrauce
apganimately 200 m distant from the Reichs-Chanocollery which

2@ loeated oppouite the Iotel Xeiserhof.  Thig entrance was
open. At the subway-station the ﬂingle groups gathered again
and went to the subway-station Friedrichstrale along ths tracks
of vhe subway. There were many civilizns on the platforus of
the subway-station Hrieﬂridhstrﬁ?a, soldlers sat arfound on
the stairs of the station. As leader of my groap whioh oon-
slgted of approximatsly 60 drivers I 16ft wana susway-siabsion
through cne of the exits which are loonted noxrth of the city-
railway-station’ Friedrichstra?e in the irledrichstrade. (Qui-
side everything was quittd. Without dangar I went abvout 200 i
up %0 the road-block on the Veldendammer bridge (ebout S00
north of the railway-station Friedrichstra e). A fow meters
behind the road-block I ocauc upon a Eroup’ nf"aald;ars vhoy told .
me, that shortdly before & group of 50 t0 60 perscns had pasuaﬁ
this spot towards north. This was the locding-grwp thﬂK&. .
Tho soldiers declared, that they had slready tried %o bresk :
“through, but that they had been beaven back. Jlussian troups
hat ocoupied the houses and basesents to both sides of the
- Priedriohstrafc north of the jeidsndanmar bridge, I now re- !
turned and fetched my men fro» the subway-station in order to
let them %ake oover in the Admiralspalast which was loecated in
front of the subway-exit. Afier several groups had arvived in
the meantime another break-through was deoided upoie I made
ons hraakuthraugh—at*mpt with my group. Without begding rired
uwpon wo oame througn the second road-block on the Veidendammerz .
bridge. But 10 or 20 m behind the second rosd-block wo receivel
strong maahina-guanire Trom all gides and had to retreat again,
Further break-out-attempts which failed were undertaken. Tho ,
braak-through of .the first group provably succeeded oaly becaust -
of the surprise of our opponents. Later on I met lrs. Junge on |
a maroh. BShe told me, ?ﬁiﬁ:?ﬁm leading-group ander 3rizade-
flhrer Mohnke had had to start afiter & few hundred metors.
About 0630 hours a negdtiator appeared and had made known that
goeueral Teohukow wisched a temporary aruistice until 0615 hours.

"
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. women had left the basement. Ambassador Hewel had tQion
.poigon. G§S=Gruppenfithres Ratitenhuber who also belomged +o
- group 1 had received a serious injury.

Luring our stay in the Adimiralspalest Reichdleiter rartin
Bormaun, Brigadefiihrer and State's secretary Ir. Kaumana,
the adj&tant .f Dr. Gooblels, Sohwegermann, and other highez
personnalities appeared about 2 or 3 o'$lock in tha morning.
I deolared Reichsleiter Dormann that in vasimpossible ta
sush through withcntdhesavy weapons. Iatar on 6 to 6 tanks
and armoured recogn. cars arrived wnioh were manned by sol-
diers. It was deoided that the tanks were to attempt the
'hreak-thrcu*h and that the men who had broken out uf the

' Reichs~ chanaallery were to advance under the protection of

the tenks. Bohind one tank otata'* secretlary Dr. launann
went as the first in the top of the tank-turrit, behindh im
Relohsleiter !artln Bormann followed by DS-Standartenfithre v
Dr. Stumpfegger. I went behind Dr. Stumpfesger. NMore men |
Jjoined ug+ After the tank huad gone about 30 to 40 m he

.- received & direot hit with a Panzerfaust, &Phe tank Flow
apart. ' I saw a short £lash of lighting an flew %o the ground

wnere I remained lying unconsciously. iy last impression wes

. that Dr. Haurann Bormann  and Dr. Sthmplegger fell together

- ond remained lying. I anuld n: longer reougnize nhy injuries.

Roxaxg 1Bcausa Dr. btumpfagga; who preceded me was 30 ¢nm

tallor than I ho protected me £rom the full blast and I ht

gscaped with pplinter injuries at my thigh and my upporari.
After an undetermined period I rvegained congeiousness saw
caly fire around me and ovep® back on the ground. I got up
behind the road blook and sat down on the streai beocause au:b

then I could not see correotly. Ss—utanﬂartanfﬁhrar Beo%a

4
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(after G5 Gruppenfiihrer Baur the second cormand pilot of the !

Flhrer) was the first whom I saw. He had a serious head in-
Jury. Just ten I saw that a new attack started from our
side, but 1 deoided not tu-hq élong any more becauese of its
futility. I returned to thu’ﬁﬁﬂiialspalasﬁ, - agsemble-4d ny
men and deolared .them that they. were disuissed. Each oue
could go on on his own, join & coubat group or go home. I
8lso advised them %o prooure ror themselves wvivilian olothes.
I uyself returned to—ti6 Iriedrichstraje railway station
with 7 wen, emoag them the lieutenant of the armoured tropp
Jorike who had been assigned to us with 3 s:mﬁuraﬂ;ékkﬂ half
wracks. Ve orossed the Spree river on the foot path direetl;
) N |



wnder the olty wallroad, vwre able 1o Teacn & hwuw. on the |
northern bank of the Opree river without heing fired upnn ;
‘and frowm thers across several elevations up to'a spol in ths
region of -Albrochtstrale, iarlgtrale or Liegelstrase. Ths |
city railroad zuns along there. Ve reached a band of the .
city ra:lrcad in wihich & dwup ol medioal epuipment was located.
Thare wo met two Jugoslave and £ Russian civillans viho had |
chuosen the oity rauilway band as tualr quarters. These & ohoe
symnpatnlzed with ug aid prouwised to Pauﬂ-fﬂ oivilian clothes
for us. hen a part of us had slready civilian clothes the
first Huseian soldlers ai rived at the yard. idaulenant Jdrka
who 8iill had no civiliau c¢lothes was hidden by us. e

othars quiukly changed olothes. The Russians dewanded that

wa come intc the yard. A Ju&ﬁslaﬁ woman ;ntradhcad me a8 nel
nusband, while tue olhers were desipgnated as oarnp labourers. .
16 decided to Tori swall groups and thus tu go into the streat-i
At vhis attenpt I waa rocogniged by o figsian suvldier and had
fu return agaia. The Russian soldiers prucured food and
¢rias. L1 have partiaipated'aﬁ thig ceremony wiaich lasted
witil 2 o'clook of the fullowing nipght. Afver the ceremony
the Jugoslav wnman'left, but returned in une norming and

T

brougat e & c08%. In this dlsguizse I was avle Yo leave the
house and wulked via Tegel Yo Hemmigsdaorf.

In Hennigsdorf I was stopped by Russisn soldliers and brought

in to a yard. Thore were German goldiers who all wore u1v1¢ian

¢clothes. We spent & few hours there. Ve woresxsked : 1 S

papers. Liine thnths of the wen had no papers. reverthoeless

all of us were dismissed. I joined tlhiree men who walked

sowards Kremmon. In the alfterncon we were again arresied 1

a villaga belore Kremmea and locked up in & chicien siadble.

we were not given any food. On thﬂ flext morning about o & “*nh

o'olock we were brought vefore the comnanaing orXficer of the

troups. The ocoumander was told that vie had boen arrosted at

night as partisans with waepons in a forest.We were the:it brough

%o Veltem to the reginal coumandant there, a coronsl. lie wag

told the same thipg. One of ny German escorts widerstood
flussian and notifisd the commandant thut we had noi been In

" tne Zurest that ﬁight,'hut ngd been arrested without weapous

in the afternoon at & olelock in the middle of & village.

The coumandant had sent for an interpretor. The negooiation
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lasted about half an hour. Probably inquiries were made.
Then we wore Searched. 'All azticles of ordinary uge, knifes,
b razors, founiain peus, pencils eto. wore taien away Irow us.
y we were then diéﬁiaaad with & pass in the divection of Dernale -

X

| However, wa four nen again marched off in the direction of
Kremmen. 2 men went ghead. With my escort I passed north of
Fehrbellin via Neustadt a.d. Dosgse towards Havelberg. About
10 km befors Havelberg 1in the village of Ilinnerits, we ware
again stopped by & sentry beslde vhon & closod car was. stan-
ding. He asked ug winthermam we were "Wehrwoli". Ve -donied 1%.
After he lLiad asked several times he went tothe car and brought
— —»H‘EEEFinB- He ook 1t off safety, alwed at us aund oance more
repeatad Eﬁﬂ quastion. fThen we were loaded upon & car. Ve
. were driven through the ?iuin;ty for a long tims. !ﬁhaai gix
times we were taken out of the oar and interrogated like be-
fore with_riflaé almed at us. Again we were soarched. Thaings

that aoulﬂ be uvesed were kepit. thar tnln*s ST S thrown away.
vy wallet which at first was uaran from ue wag returned. We .
were told that we coulg go. Before leaving & Rusgsian seldier

- gave me & cigarette. «ith the uncerituin feeling that one '
would fire at us we left. S i

In the eveuning of 8th i'ay 1945 we arrived in havelberg. Ve
looked for the next best barn ia corder Lo sleep. (n the nexy
porning we were again throwa out very early; this wes a cuwp

3 for various fureigners. These were led to work in the wor-
ning. #e were able to leave with the water carrviers. e
went through gavelberg tu a farm. There we receivad wilk and
wont to sleep. w6 awcke at 3 c'clook in ihe afternoon. 2 othex
Germans who wanted o oross the slbe river, bub could no loa- |
gor oross ist, had been living with this farmer for one o §
two days. We conferred to waie an atlempt to oruss the Elbe.
river togother bu the fullowing days. iie remained with the
farmer Loxr one or two days.

In the morning of 1lth tiay 1945 we crossed the Havel river

near Havelberg in the ﬁiractien of Saadew wnd reconnocitered
the situation thnere. Baya declared us %hut the klbe was ai- C
tuated behind the woods. ie woald only have to go through '



ik o evanp. dhen we ocaue there um the next moraing about 11
o'clock the woods we¥e hegvily occupied. Lowover, we crept
thruugh the woods and landed in the swanp. All: the day loag
until sbout & o'olock et night we stayed in the swanp. Then
wo orussed the deam, wont into the water 4t once and swam

to the other. side. After we had dresssd we were sicpped by
the Tuscians about 500 = farther. This had really been only
one arw of tha Llbe river. we wero relurned to Havelberg %o
¢ oamp. Iin javelverg we wore nheold for 16 days together with
‘B0 to 40 men aad transported tor Kyritz via (lowen. * On the

‘Hﬂﬂhngmh‘?ay I left Zyzitz uaain with a varins. Ve walked ta'ﬁha-:

next- railhay,utatinn and Zrom thera rode with. & workers' train
o witteuberge. In vwitlenbergs we tried to receive permissioa

%o stay for threo days. Ilowbver wo. were denied i¥t with the
resson that vittenberge could not Yeed iteeld wnd that oz
tua Gi.e being L. Lood vould be pruvided for transients. e
gontinued in tle direcction of tke - ilbe rivew. On our way wWe
vioro ohoppod by & Cossack. LLcTe e worked Lexr a whole day,
curted dung, swept the ywrd sud cleancd diskes. 0n tho saue

day we leit the CoZspack and wWeut to the cdge of the ocity of

Tivvenberge where we spulit the nplght with (cruong.

" On tle next day we looked at the slitGation on the 1lbe Tivew
ced agreed to swim across the [ilbe river av tha point of this
house. Te prucured the upper part of a.buby car inorder to:
gtore cur thinﬁa in it while swiumlng acrcss the Llbe rivser.
Yhug we iy ‘aoross the Elbe river at 0L30 hours. /e reporied
to the Blrgerneisler in Gattha;g. The lucality was osoupled
by Auwericans. The BLruarme¢atmr told uo that & change of
cowmand velween Avericaus and Bunglish was Jjust taklng plece
aid advised us' to move ol until a new oouwmand had been
established. Ve tThen went to Vorsfeldec. There I received a
warch order to peleburg from &n Lnglish commend post.

xXzk I still remember the follewing details. On the porning
ol 2. Lay 1945'&&-Lauptuturmfﬁhra“ Schma&armann notified me

- Ghat br. Gtoebbsols and his ‘wife were dead. They had both died
in the Fdhrer's bunkar.& Tharaupnn the Fihrer's buuker had

| . Y u
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fhaﬂn ignited. I did not ask ﬂny further question, but I |

Loy guppose that Dr. Goahuels and his wife had cammittad ﬁHiﬂithE
e L

o ;
. General Burgdorf end SS-Sturmbaiafithror uﬂuhﬂle of the Fihrey
- Eeoort Command still romained ia the leichs-Uhancellery.

Schtdle told me that he would shcot himself if the Russlans |
ware to push through €o the Heloiis~Chancellery. 5o fur as I
know further meabers of the rihrer Escort Coumuwend did nut re-
nain there. It is poselible that some returned after futile
break=-through atteupta. '

After 20. April 1945 Reichsuinister speer Szuwe U0 the HKelcha- |
' Chancellery withe a gt;rk (uumpara %o US I, = 6) whioch was
flowa by Thaa Rasohe. 1. expect that the pliane had landed

ey

’ ok e ;
" on the Hofjdgerallee (a oross road to the“lld lest axis).

However, the Flbhrer &t once seni Speer &way. L do uot haliav&.
that aireraft have landed and svarted on v he Bast .est &xise.
Soon after 22th April 1945 haavy art¢lla;; five was laid on
the Eaat ﬁeat axis.

As Tepurter

\ . /s./ ZLrich Kempka
/8./  Herrgesell -

Amtagerichtsrat
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21 JAN1975

DECLARATION

Gunaarhlng the treatment of paracnuted Allled alr crove
I have experioncali the following:: .
1) In 1943 or, at the latost, in the first nalf of 1944

illvdilail as chlef of the Uerman pollcee iscusd a socrat order to

all dopartments whlch told them not to lnitlate any pcl;ca o

aaurtlmeaauras agalnst compatrlots (Volksgenosven) who comnit
acts of violeace agaiﬁﬁt parachuted Allled alr crews, This secret
oruer was also issued to tho SS- and Police Courts. In ¥ay 1945
the ANTORICHTEZR of BERCH?EEGAUEK told m?'that.hg,'too{ had Kunowe

ledge of thie order. From that I concludo that'thla ordoyfas

-&lso trassmltied to all German prosecutlon agencies (STAATSAN=-

WALTSCUAFTEN) and courtd,

2) At an ovenlng briefing in the FUEHRIk Hoadquarters, aaaut
uaptamnar ly## at which I acted as a stsnograJhor togother whih
4re LUCHHOLZ and Lr, HAAGEN, the repressntative of the RUICH Leoa=

der of the 55 (HIM&LZR) ian the FUSHKSR Headquartsrs, SS&ChUPPEH=

" FUsiheR FuOELEIW, reported that during an Allied day rald on

WUH TGH one or more Allled alr crew Wembers hﬂﬁ-pﬁbﬁchutad within
tha ecity limits of MuNICH, that they had haﬁn aszaultad by puraons
out of tho mass of the peuple, that a soldlier of the GA¥ and a ¢
party aoaber had intarvenad and arraatad the alr crew moabers ”
la order to'make them Prlsoners of War and at the same tims to
protoet then from furthner acts of violsnca, &EuGaUEREHFUEHRQH
FoGouLiIN, who according to his ﬂtatamant'had.raaeiuad hlg KIiOv=
lodgo frou @ meaver of the pollieo, espascially scurnsd ths membar
of the CGAT and declared that if ho had besn thors, hé Wwould hava
llquidated the alr .orew memosrs hluself, I recall this evenlng
Lora accurately alnca-rdﬁiLﬁIH:waa obviaua}y dntoxlcated. A4mong
otner things, he often rspoatsd that eonomy ailreralt had flown aﬁ
an altltude of 5 m above ths streoeta. This, howsver, doss not

noces:zarily lndicats that Figs Cilsii*B statement in this caoce

495

- -



corresponded, with his real point of view. I cannot rocall any |
mors whlch side HITLER took. Becauss of his gonoral cutlook
upon this questlon, 1t may be assumed that he agraéﬂ vith FiGde
LSIN'e exolamations. At least Col. Gon. (US Gen) GUUSHIAN was
 prosont at thse evoning bri@rlng‘bsalﬁqa HITLEK and.FEGELLIN . -
Fleld 'Marshal KZITil wao probably also prosent. The total -
‘attendonco prooably amounted to at least 10 porsons. .
3fjﬁt agbaqu§EF dates HITLIR ﬁlacuaaad the event FEGELEIN
-had told him of. Duri&;h;mzﬁﬁraranna hﬁ declarsd that he no |
lnn&ar doubteod Hhat FmGuLﬂIh hada told hlm, because ha HI;uuu,
- had spokan with the member of tha paliee -1 bﬂlieva he spoito of
8 KRIALNALRAT = himaalf or hﬂd ?ead hls owa report. This ro=- .
peatedly caused hlm to apaak in strdng words agalaet the GAF.
lio eritlolzed the GAF for preventing the olvillan population
froa narr}lna out stronger weasures agalnst parachuted ﬁ;llad alr
crows. Tho GAF were scared, it wore cowardly in that it thaﬁght,'
of the tims it 'would fly over onsmy territory again. In other
confersncss HITLIR inqulred ﬁhat ms&sures would be taken against
GAF mombors who had protected enomy alr éraws from the "furious
mase of tne people.” He dld not recsive a positive reply ia wy
progeuds., An uttor ﬁilanaa of the repraogeatatives of the GAF
alnost lont thé lopresslon that nn? dla nat'ahara HITLXK's opi=
'nlon., HITLER alao remapried that the above asntlonec party @mombar
had been ousted from the party, ?erhapl, he also reported that
ho haa bean ghnt. 'Thia'waulﬁ have correspoaded with HITLER's
aondality, = ;
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I#} puriug an aftarnonn'briafing; approximately on 10 April
1945, & moszage = probably froam a QiU Leader = was submltied
accordlng to wnlch a wmembor dflthe wieHiiACHT nad ggaln protected
par;ahutaa alliad alraon agalnst acts of violenco of coupatrlots.
After tho reading of thls mesrage HITLER bocams furious and co=
clarad that from now on he r‘ ulro that tha pnrnanutnd airmnn
wo uelluarad to tho furlious wass of the paana or oo auhjuutad
to en allled bomblag. ie gave as hls reason that thoy were nr%ml-

uals. “Hofore anyone could—say-a word to thls he changod hls mind

and sald: "I want all American and iaglish pllots liquidatoed.”

Just at that momont [ looksd up from my wrltlug aud looied into
tae faces of the peraoha standing around HiTLdﬁ in ordar_tu'ﬁae
the reaction of HiTLER'e wurdﬁ. I voemsabsr with complote certalin-
ty that Gen, (US Lt'.Gan.} KOLLER, the Chisef of thafCenoral Starlrl
of tho LUFTWAFFZ, stood to the left of HITL H. wino s2t la a chalr,
Hoe, who unever exgﬂlleﬁ in discusslonse and almost regularly maao a
'halplaqa stand qaainﬁt HITLER's roproaches, 1altha Tirst to asck
a question, "Froam wnen on?" he asied, With thet he moant whothor
all parachuted Allled alrmen were covered by this ordor of tho
§U£HREH or only ﬁhaaa wno hﬂa paracnutod aiﬁca & geirtaln dato.
HLTLEh‘alrahly.waa:1“’lnna I-have lesusd the nruar." Sinco I

have alwsys paid spacial attention to the bLireacnes of Interna=-



e e e e e =
i : L

._\h

jiall

. ] =

- tlonal Law vwhleh were ordered op tolerated by the laaﬂinu alamant.

I at onco trlied to thiuk which o“dar cuuld ‘have booen weoant. I had

no knowlaugn of & further ordor than that mentioned under 1) and

_ baliavad that 1t could only ba this ordor, I caanol say hhathar

KOLLER and tho othor particlpants of the hriefing also thought
only of this order. Neither Cen. KOLLER nor theo rest of ths par=-

tlicipants asked any question rfor elucldation, Gsn, KOLLIR'e atti-

"¢ tude distlootly showed that ho did not llke this new order, and

ho probably remained silent becauss of that, HITLER soon turned
around and addressed the chlef of thoe Security Police and 8D,
SE=UbLGRUAVANFUSHRER 1.re KALTENSRUNNER, whno was ﬁtahding bahind

him. He ordored him to taxo caro that the liquidatiﬁn of the

~ afore=maationed alrman bs exacutad and to roport thls to him,

B —

Lr. nﬂL‘HﬁEﬂunhuhhdtﬂ"ﬁbt‘?ﬁﬁly‘tu thia order and thus accepted
it. I do not rocall WLth certalnty dITLun and thﬂ othor brierllug
partlalpants made any furthor remarks about this point lumedlately
after the briefing. 11 recall only somewhatl vaguely that the
posslbllity of reprisales by the eneumy side had beon mentionod

and that HITLIR had ordored the arrest of 160,000 French civie
lisn workers for that cass, I bolleve that thls directive was
slven in conneotion witn the order auncarnlna'tha parachuted
Allled alramaen, hnwava;, I .cannot say 8o with uerta;nhr..

u
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I do not recall with full certalnty which porsons were
procent 1n tho above mesntlionad Brlafing, apprafimately on
10 april 1y45, besides HITLER, KOLLZR, @nd ir. KALTENDRUNN .
The partlolpants of the brlefings, who usually aaocunted taIES

persons, changed not only daily but also during each brieflng.

-

IQ 1altharafora puaaih}& that one or the othar partlcipant, who
was present at the beglmnanlng and whoéa nama was listed, was not
praagﬂﬁﬁiﬁ“tna War-Roow = an eir raid sheltor rooim of 4x4 m =
during the declalve mlnutes. One may assums almsst cortalaly

that Fleld Narshal KSITIL was presont. Ho has laft the War Koom
only seldom., Of the better known personalities Col. Gen. (US Gen.)
JOUL, Gon. (US Lt. Gon.) ﬁﬁEBs, parhhpa Grand Admiral LOENITZ may
b9 wsntloned as posselble further particlpants. . )

I eoxpectsd that after the sfare-mgntlonad orlefling Lre XAL-
TibsnUMNER would take ataéa‘ta carry out HITLZx's order. It often
occurred that HITLER daulafad what was to-be done in thl s or that
mattar; but that theso declaratlions were not really regarded as
orders by hils adjﬁtantg or ths reprogentatives of tha;HEHHHAGHT.

In thls case thare could be no doubt for anyone famillar with
HITLER's montallty and consldering the éttitudﬂ of the men aﬁdrasﬂaﬁ.
by him that this wﬁa & stricy order. Although the stenographoers
werae strictly furP@ddan to dlscuss anythlng ovorhesrd in the orief-
lnga, aﬁan among themselves, I told this mattor and my polnt of

view Lo my colleague Lr. JONUSCIIAT, whom alone I trustedé, bocause

1 had coavingad myself that he was an opponent on lNazlsu and was

L

ahlg to take a nrlﬁlnlzing stand. Dr. JONUSCHAT sharad .my opinlon
that hL?LﬂR had becoams completsly insane. I, mysslf, régardad it .
a8 oy cuty to undertake somsthlng in, thls matter. On the next ‘
day or the day thereafter, having completed the dlctatlon of my
stonographic notes, Iiwgnt to ; mﬁh i knew in ﬂdﬁLIh,’ln whom I -
could trust in every respect, and of whom I itri;;.t'.hﬂ.t. he had good |

connectlons in BIALIN., He was tho dlrectdr of tha GAUSS School - ' 49



(for ensineers) in BIRLIN, Ur. XKURT GEHLHOFF, BARLIN=TGEL, HYR=-
TENWRG 19, ©Or. GEHLHOFF, whose acqualntancs I made as the frlsad
of a priest well known to me and who had connsetions with higher
Protestant olrcles 15 BZRLIN.I could not dischver whetlner DT
GmHLHdFF‘haﬂ_ﬁﬁan able to undortake anything im thls watior, be=
causo. tha uanneutiﬁﬁghﬁiﬂﬁ‘faﬁahfggfg_intarrupéed a fow days later,
and i have not goen Lr. GEIHLHOFF agaln. About 20 May 1945, ir. '
Huss, the ropresontative of ths Hoarst pross with the Eaventhfu.ﬁ,'
Army told me that an American repressatatlvs of the Red Cross |
had sent a report to a haahlﬂmsrican.offlca, aaparding to,whlch
HITLER had orederd the shooting of &'graat nuaber of paracnuted
4llied alrmen. I have made no etatement to Mr, iuss concerning
this mattaf. _

-1 have not heard anythiﬁg about thalaxécutlan of HITLEREs
order in later briefings. I then lived in the hope that the or-
dersd measurs had become outdated by the unexpectedly quick run
of events.

As a secoad #ténagraphar, olther Mr. HeINZAUCHHOLZ or Dr.
aURT HAAGEZN may be able to ma#a further statoments about the
conversation reported umder 4). About the attitude of the LUFT=-
WAFFE in this case Gen, KOLLEZR, who must be in captivity, and
about possible measurses by the GESTAPO SS5-O0BIRCHUPPENFUEHRER ‘
DIr. ZALTENSARUKNZR, who, according to press reports, was captured
by tﬁa Seventh U.S5. Army, should be ﬁhla talgivé information.
BERCHTLSGADEN, 19 July 1945, y '

- | | /o/ GERH. HERRGISELL -

' | | _ _ /t/ ANTSGERICHTSRAT

.. (Judgo)
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